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2025
73,383,413 100.02
12,609 0.02
73,370,805
( 10,970 ) 100.00
2025

Luminis 11
Limited 0%
07/23/2025

0| 2025/ /23| 67,527,530 | 65,609,748 | 65,643,512 |89.47

Luminis 11
Limited 0%
07/23/2025/AUD/

0| 2025/ /23| 12,765,270 | 8,880,979 | 7,739,901 [10.55

2025

2025
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2025

(2020 12 ) 155,694,127 23,279 9.99 1,494 10.02 942
(021 12 ) 109,533,092 16,377 9.64 1,441 9.50 893
(2022 12 ) 78,428,757 11,727 8.83 1,320 8.82 829
(2023 12 ) 75,441,733 11,280 9.16 1,370 9.14 859
(2024 12 ) 73,235,022 10,950 9.57 1,431 9.50 893
2024 73,747,386 11,027 9.23 1,380 9.24 868
74,095,079 11,079 9.27 1,386 9.28 872

73,669,720 11,015 9.31 1,392 9.29 873

73,626,629 11,009 9.37 1,401 9.34 878

74,132,026 11,084 9.43 1,410 9.39 882

74,171,477 11,090 9.49 1,419 9.43 886

10 73,534,690 10,995 9.50 1,420 9.44 887

11 73,681,447 11,017 9.54 1,426 9.48 891

12 73,235,022 10,950 9.57 1,431 9.50 893

2025 73,288,798 10,958 9.60 1,435 9.53 896
73,498,667 10,990 9.64 1,441 9.57 899

73,370,805 10,970 9.67 1,446 9.60 902

98/305



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

.10

.50

.40

.74

AWl |W]|O

.48

.20

.19

.16

.63

WlwliN|JO1|O

.94

100 x

10.00 10.00

99/305



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

14,023,532 603,956 13,419,576
(14,023,532) (603,956) (13,419,576)
0 3,298,631 10,120,945
) (3,298,631) (10,120,945)
0 2,185,079 7,935,866
) (2,185,079) (7,935,866)
0 608,450 7,327,416
0) (608,450) (7,327,416)
0 453,615 6,873,801
0) (453,615) (6,873,801)
3,069,022 254,532 2,814,490
(3,069,022) (254,532) (2,814,490)
0 1,075,994 1,738,496
0) (1,075,994) (1,738,496)
0 343,123 1,395,373
0) (343,123) (1,395,373)
0 60,458 1,334,915
) (60,458) (1,334,915)
0 71,434 1,263,481
0) (71,434) (1,263,481)
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2024 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31
2,6,12
73,313,987 10,961,907
3 102,584 15,338
73,416,571 10,977,246
73,185,022 10,942,624
16 73,185,022 10,942,624
6
5 63,925 9,558
16 50,000 7,476
30,446 4,552
9 28,710 4,293
4 58,468 8,742
231,549 34,621
73,416,571 10,977,246
16
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DMS 2020 07
6,873,801 1,263,481
65,774,550 9,834,611 7,460,472 1,115,490
9.569 1,431 5.905 883
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2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31
2,6,12
75,487,222 11,286,849
3 76,691 11,467
75,563,913 11,298,316
75,441,733 11,280,048
16 75,441,733 11,280,048
6
5 33,755 5,047
5 47,104 7,043
4 41,321 6,178
122,180 18,268
75,563,913 11,298,316
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DMS 2020 07
9 7,327,416 1,334,915
16 67,111,864 10,034,566 8,329,869 1,245,482
9.159 1,369 6.240 933
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12 31
DS 2020 07
2024 12 31

4,007 599

2 3,011,92; 450,34;
3,015,928 450,942
5 (391,147) (58,484)
5,14 (129,290) (19,331)
5 - -
16 (50,000) (7,476)
11 (36,248) (5.420)
(606, 685) (90,712)

2,409,243 360,230

10 - -
2,409,243 360,230

2,409,243 360,230

16
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DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31
4,150 621
3,370,326 503,931
3,374,476 504,552
(407,182) (60,882)
(115,240) (17,231)
(33,686) (5,037)
(556,108) (83,149)
2,818,368 421,402
2,818,368 421,402
2,818,368 421,402
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2024 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31
75,441,733 11,280,048
(4,665,954) (697,653)
2,409,243 360,230
73,185,022 10,942,624
2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31
78,428,757 11,726,668
(5,805,392) (868,022)
2,818,368 421,402
75,441,733 11,280,048
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2024 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31
2,409,243 360,230
257,539 38,507
(3,269,460) (488,850)
5,185,156 775,285
30,170 4,511
(16,658) (2,491)
50,000 7,476
17,147 2,564
4,663,137 697,232
(4,637,244) (693,361)
(4,637,244) (693,361)
25,893 3,872
76,691 11,467
102,584 15,338
16
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2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31

2,818,368 421,402
605,516 90,537
(3,975,842) (594,468)

6,205,365 927,826

8,927 1,335

13,463 2,013
(1,643) (246)

37,085 5,545

14,942 2.234

5,726,181 856,179
(5,816,891) (869,742)
(5,816,891) (869,742)
(90,710) (13,563)

167,401 25,030

76,601 11,467
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1990
2020
35
2024 12 31
DMS 2020 07 2020 28
DMS 2103 2021 30
One-Day 2023 12
DMS 2020 07
2020 28
2025 25
DMS 2103 10
2021 30
2031 31
One-Day 10 2023 12

2033 31
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1990
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AIFM
DMS 2020 07
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12
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
3,008 7,645
(260,547) (613,161)
(257,539) (605,516)
(903) (121)
3,270,363 3,975,963
3,269,460 3,975,842
3,011,921 3,370,326

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
4,766 2,363

(3,274,501)

(1,348,724)

(3,269,735)

(1,346,361)

(250) (302)
4,630,903 3,856,308
4,630,653 3,856,006
1,360,918 2,509,645
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
64,045 103,127
(2,742,077) (2,435)
154,660 197,237
(174,758) (199,917)
1,705,645 33,969
(992,485) 131,981
(856,509) 943,860
(628,987) (1,231)
1,928,101 971,973
442,605 1,914,602
(549,880) 2,046,583
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1997 739

1997 739

1997

DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31

210
19,707
82,667

102,584

2023 12 31

188

BNP 21,537
JP 54,966
76,691

131/305



DMS

One-Day

JP

DMS

2103

2020

07

132/305

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 12 31

412
9,781
94,205
104,398

2023 12 31

217
9,385
56,107
65,709

2024 12 31

(223,437)
107
(223,330)

2023 12 31

1,515
37,013
38,528

2024 12 31 2023 12 31

44,497 35,550
1,206 637
12,765 5,134

58,468 41,321




DMS 2103
One-Day
0.15
2020 07
155,000
2024 12
2020 07
115,240
DMS 2103
31 123,163
One-Day
25,834 2023 12 31
DMS
10,587
DMS
DMS 2103
One-Day

2024 12 31
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
854,167 845,024
1,680 1,124
17,924 4,027
873,771 850,175
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
42,798 -
29,431 6,630
307 11
7,002 3,012
79,538 9,653
DMS
DMS 2103
125,000 One-Day
31 DMS
129,290 2023 12 31
30,446 2023 12 31 47,104
75,213 2023 12
11,988 2023 12 31 74,975
155,000 2023 12 31 46,713
46,713 2024 12 31
2103
41,666 125,000
2020 07
0.53
0.80
DMS
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2020 07 391,147 2023 12 31
407,182 63,925 2023 12 31 33,755 DMS
2103 415,968 2023 12 31
435,175 63,681 2023 12 31 34,196 One-
Day 442,584 2023 12 31 120,239 62,813 2023
12 31 39,178
10 0.04 15
0.035 25 0.03
0.01
2024 12 31
DMS 2020 07
7,380 2023 12 31 7,685 1,206 2023 12 31 637
DMS 2103
7,849 2023 12 31 8,211 1,680 2023 12 31 1,124
One-Day 5,532 2023 12 31 1,503
307 2023 12 31 11
36,524 2023 12 31 36,943
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07
25,000 DMS 2103
125,000 One-Day 165,000
One-Day 16,387 2023 12 31 145,000
2024 12 31 One-Day
98,413 2023 12 31 130,447 2024 12
31 DMS 2020 07

DMS 2103
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2103
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2023 12 31 DMS 2103
2103
DMS
29,976 2023 12 31 163,519
2023 12 31 845,024
12 31 2023 12 31
DNIS DNIS one-0a
2020 07 2103 y
2024 12 31 2024 12 31 2024 12 31
- - 46,294,082
73,313,987 74,537,110 -
_ - 87,351
73,313,987 74,537,110 46,381,433
- - 630,218
- - 630,218
DNS DN
2020 07 2103 One-Day
2023 12 31 2023 12 31 2023 12 31
- - 59,636,333
75,487,222 83,860,833 -

943,860

135/305



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
ooooodooodooonnooodd

75,487,222 83,860,833 60,580,193
- - 1,231
- - 1,231
One-Day
2024 12 31
87,351 (87,351) - - -
46,294,082 - - - 46,294,082
46,381,433 (87,351) - - 46,294,082
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630,218 (87,351) - - 542,867
630,218 (87,351) - - 542,867
2023 12 31
943,860 (1,231) - - 942,629
59,636,333 - - - 59,636,333
60,580,193 (1,231) - - 60,578,962
1,231 (1,231) - - _
1,231 (1,231) - - -
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07 DMS
2103
10 150,000
10 200,000
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0.01 0.01
One-Day
10 150,000
10 150,000

1,000 150,000,000

1,000 150,000,000

DMS

2024 12 31 2023 12 31

7,327,416 1,334,915 7,935,866 1,395,373

(453,615) (71,434) (608, 450) (60,458)
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6,873,801 1,263,481 7,327,416 1,334,915
DMS 2103
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
10,370,514 1,229,436 10,802,722 1,238,393
(1,282,715) (106,473) (432,208) (8,957)
9,087,799 1,122,963 10,370,514 1,229,436
One-Day
2024 12 31
2,329,167 227,292 3,791,430 1,135,470
1,052,879 219,090 212,751 2,571
(649,136) (91,377) (2,176,476) (904,288)
2,732,910 355,005 1,827,705 233,753
2023 12 31
2,359,703 227,292 4,214,764 1,135,470
(30,536) - (423,334) -
2,329,167 227,292 3,791,430 1,135,470
2024 12 31 DMS
2020 07 28,710 2023 12
31 DMS 2103 7,520
2023 12 31 7,430 One-Day 66,846 2023 12
31
10
DMS 2020 07 DMS

2103
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One-Day
2024 12 31 DMS 2020 07
DMS 2103
One-Day 345,338 2023 12 31 81,820
11
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
12,238 26,001
7,380 7,685
16,630 -
36,248 33,686
DMS 2103
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
29,976 163,519
7,849 8,211
25,256 10,841

63,081 182,571
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
122,340 9,041
22,801 6,630
5,485 -
5,532 1,503
10,474 3,631
166,632 20,805
10
2020 07
7,548,722 DMS 2103
7,453,711 2023 12 31 8,386,083 One-Day

2023 12 31 5,963,633 10
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2023 12 31

AIFMD

BBH
BBH
BBH

A+ 2023 12
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A 2023 12 31 A

2024 12 31
MFS
DOT DOT MFS
UBO DOT
1,000
2024 12 31
(e)
One-Day
One-Day
A+ 2023 12

31 A+
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Q)
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
7,657,072 65,759,499 73,416,571
- (231,549) (231,549)
7,657,072 65,527,950 73,185,022
2023 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
8,485,702 67,078,211 75,563,913
- (122,180) (122,180)
8,485,702 66,956,031 75,441,733
DMS 2103
2024 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
5,375,535 69,276,560 74,641,508
- (967,547) (956,960)

5,375,535 68,309,013 73,684,548
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2023 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
6,102,801 77,823,741 83,926,542
- (966,776) (966,776)
6,102,801 76,856,965 82,959,766
One-Day
2024 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
87,458 46,686,025 46,773,483
(630,218) (458,468) (1,088,686)
(542,760) 46,227,557 45,684,797
2023 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
1,298,734 60,131,969 61,430,703
(1,231) (725,797) (727,028)
1,297,503 59,406,172 60,703,675
2024 12 31
2020 07
382,854 2023 12 31 424,285 DMS 2103
268,777 2023 12 31 305,140
2024 12 31
One-Day 27,138 2023 12 31
64,875
)
FRS102 2A.1
2016 FRS 34.22
IFRS 13 GAAP
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31
- - 73,313,987 73,313,987
- - 73,313,987 73,313,987
2023 12 31
- - 75,487,222 75,487,222
- - 75,487,222 75,487,222
DMS 2103
2024 12 31
- - 74,537,110 74,537,110
- - 74,537,110 74,537,110
2023 12 31
- - 83,860,833 83,860,833
- - 83,860,833 83,860,833
One-Day
2024 12 31
- 46,294,082 - 46,294,082
- 87,351 - 87,351
- 46,381,433 - 46,381,433
- 630,218 - 630,218
- 630,218 - 630,218
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2023 12 31
- 59,636,333 - 59,636,333
- 943,860 - 943,860
- 60,580,193 - 60,580,193
- 1,231 - 1,231
- 1,231 - 1,231
FRS102
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
75,487,222 78,322,261
(5.185,719) (6,204,569)
(258, 338) (606, 433)
3,270,822 3,975,963
73,313,987 75,487,222
2024 12 31
3,665,699 2023 12 31 3,774,361
DMS 2103
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
83,860,833 84,842,688
(10,684,130) (3,490,121)
(3,270,710) (1,348,042)
4,631,117 3,856,308
74,537,110 83,860,833
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2024 12 31
3,726,856 2023 12 31 4,193,042
GS
13.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
1.6086 1.4655
1.0394 1.1039
157.2000 140.9800
14.
2024 12 31
2023 12 31 AIFM
IE
IE FRS102
IE
IE 2024 11
2025 31
IE UK
2024 29

2025 31
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15.
IE
16.
FRS102
DMS 2020 07 2025 25
50,000
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
73,185,022 75,441,733
50,000 -
73,235,022 75,441,733
DMS 2103
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
73,684,548 82,959,766
- 57,231

73,684,548 83,016,997
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18.

DMS

2024 12 31

19.
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
45,684,797 60,703,675
98,413 130,447
45,783,210 60,834,122
2024 29
2024 11
2025 31
2025 31
2020 07 2025 25
50,000

2025 11
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2024 12 31

DMS 2020 07

2023 12 31 100.06

68,399,030 65,676,749 89.74
12,786,670 7,637,238 10.44
73,313,987 100.18

(128,965) (0.18)
73,185,022 100.00
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

DMS Target Maturdty  DMS Target Maturity

Setting Fund 202007 Setting Fund 2103
(Towvesting In Goldman  {Investing in Goldman e Dy
Sades Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bonds) Premium Fund
As at As at As
31 December 20024 31 Dkecember 2024 31 December 2024
Moles UsD Usp UsD
Current Assels
Firancial assets al fair value through
profit or loss 2,612
Total Retum Rasket Swaps - . 46,294,082
Performance-lmked Notes 73313987 4,537,110 -
Unrealised appreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Contracts - . 87.351
Cash 3 102,584 104,398 107
Reeceivable for investments sold - . 31,467
Receivable for Fund Units sold - 360476
Total Current Assels 73,416,571 74,641,508 46,773,483
Equity
et assets attributable to Unithelders 73,185 022 73,684 548 45 684,797
Total Equity 16 73,185,022 73,684,548 45,684,797
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or less [
Unrealised depreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Contracts - 630,218
Bank overdraft 3 - - 233437
Digribution fees payable 5 63,925 63,681 62,313
Liquidation costs payvable® 16 501,000 . -
ATIFM fees payable L 046 11988 2583
Fayable for Units repurchased g 28,710 T.520 66,846
Other pavabl e 4 58,468 873.771 79,538
Total Current Liabilitles 231,549 956,960 1068, 686
Total Equity and Current Liabilities 73,416,571 74,641,508 46,773,483

*Represents a provision for estimated costs to be incurred in the liqusdation of the sub-fund. Refer to Note 16

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

13
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Dacusign Ermvidope D GCT42TFC-B4BE-4708-8E0B-DE044 DDF 2534

Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2024

DS Target Maturity DMS Target Mataricy

Setting Fand 2020-07 Setting Fund 2103

(Investing in Godman Sachs {Tnwestimg In Goldman Sachs

Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)

5D AT Ush AR

Unit Class Uit Clazs Uit Class Umit Class

Number of LUnits in Issue 9 6,873,801 1,263,481 9.087.799 1,121,963

Met Asset Value per Unit Class (USID) 16 65,774, 5507 146047 68,488,343 3,196,205

Net Asset Value per Unit (L'SD) 9.560" 5905 7.536 4,627
Che-Dhay
Preminm Fund
sp UsD JPEY JPY
Accumulading Monthly  Acounmalating Manthly
Unii Class Distribution Uit Class Distribastion
Unde Clase Unde Class
Number of Units in Issue 9 2731910 355,005 1,827,705 233,753
Mot Assed Value per Unit Class (LSD) 16 29,169,371 3,569,158 11,537,467 1408801
Met Assel Value per Unit (USDY) 10.673 10,054 6313 6027

*Represents Net Azset Valoe per Unit Class for Unitholder dealing purposes.
“ Represents Net Asset Vaboe por Unit for Unitholder dealing purposes.

Signed on behalf of Waystone Management Company (IE ) Limited
Docusigned by: Srproed by
Sams s E o

Date: 11 Jume 2025

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

14
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2023

DINES Target Maturity  DMS Target Maturity

Setting Fund 202007 Seiting Fund 2103
{Tevesting in Goldman  {Investing in Geoldman Chme-Thay
Sadu Corporate Bondi) Sachs Corporate Bonds) FPremium Fund®
Asat As ol Ax ot
31 December 2023 31 Thecembrer 2023 31 December 2023
Notes USD UsSD UsD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 2612
Total Retum Basket Swaps - 2 20636313
Performance-linked Noles 15487222 3860833 -
Unrealised appreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Contracts - . 943,860
Cash 3 76,691 65,709 38528
Receivable for Fund Units sold - - 731,707
Cither receivable - - 74275
Total Current Assets 75,563,913 53.926.542 61,430,703
Exquity
Wet aszets attributable to Unitholders 75,441,713 £2.059, 766 60,703 675
Total Equity 16 75,441,733 %2 959 ThH6 60,703,675
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss [
Unrealised depreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Comtracts - - 1,231
Disribution fees pavable 5 33,755 34,196 32178
AIFM fees pavable 5 47,104 74,975 46,713
Crganisational expense payable - . 13448
Payable for Units repurchased 9 - T A0 -
Fayahle for investments purchased 2 - . 616,805
Other payable 4 41,321 850,175 9,653
Total Current Liabilities 122,180 H66,7Th 727028
Total Equity and Current Liabilithes 75,563,913 83,926,542 61,430,703

*“The ab-fund lumched on 12 September 2023,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2023

DMS Target Matarbty DS Target Manaricy
Serting Fand 2020-07 Setting Fund 2103
{Investing in Goddman Sachs {Tnvesting In Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)
TSD AT Ush AlD
Unit Class Uit Clazs Unit Class Umit Class
Number of Units in Issue 9 7327416 1,334,915 10370514 12219436
Mel Asset Value per Unit Class (USDY 16 67111, 864 8319369 77,007,888 5,951,878
MNet Asset Value per Unit (LSD) 9159 6.240 7426 4841
Che-Dhay
Prenyium Fund®
Usp U5 JEY I
Accumulading Monthly  Acounmalating Manthly
Unii Class Distribution Uit Class Distribastion
Undf Class Und Class
Number of Units in Issue 9 2319167 225292 3791430 1.135.470
MNet Assel Value per Unit Class (USD) 16 23,642,483 2,275,803 26,824,832 7,956,557
Met Assel Value per Unit (USD) 1151 10030 10735 7.007

*The ailb-fund lmmched an 12 September 2023,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

DMS Target Maturlty DM Targes Maturby

Setting Fund 2020-07 Setting Fund 2103
{Trevesting In Goldman  (Iovesting in G oldoman U Dhay
Sades Corporate Bonds) Sackhs Corporate Bomds) Prembum Fund
For the Mnandial year  For the Mnandial year For the fimandial year
ended ended ended
31 Drecenaber 2024 31 December 2024 31 Decembrer 2024
Motes UsD =D usn
Income
Interest income 4,007 5,632 16,911
Cither income - - 2689
et gain/{lossh on financial assets o far
vahie through profit or loss 2 3.011,921 1,360,918 {549,880
Total Med Income| Loss) 3.0158,925 1,366, 550 {530,280)
Expenses
Distribution fees 5 (391,147) {415,968) {442 584)
AIFM fees 514 (129.290) (75.213%) {155,000)
Organisational expenses 5 - - (16,387)
Licuidation costs provision™ 16 {30,000 - 2
Cither expenses 11 {36, 248) {63,081 {166,632
Total Operating Expenses {66, 655) (554.262) { THLG03)
MNet Operating Profit'(Loss)
before Finance Cost and Tax 2,409,243 812,258 (1,310, 583)
Finance Cosis
Disributions to Unitholders 10 . - (345,338)
Met Operating Profit(Loss) 2,400,243 812258 {1.656.221)
Total Comprehensive Profit{ Loss) 2,408,243 812258 (1,656,221)

*Hepresents a provision for estimated costs to be incurred in the liquidation of the sub-fund. Refer to Note 16,
Income and expenses arose solely from continuing operations except for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund
2020-07 (Tirvesting in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds).

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive ncome.

The accompanying notes form an integral pant of these financial staements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Comprehensive Income {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

DMS Target Maturity  DMS Targes Maturby

Serting Fund 2020-07 Setting Fund 2103
(Tevesting in Goldman  (Investing in Goldman Ome-Day
Sadu Corporate Bomds) Sachs Corporate Bomds) Prenaum Fund®
For the finsncial year  For the Gnandal year  For the Gnandal perlod
ended ended ended
31 December 2023 31 Deceamber 2023 31 December 2023
Motes UsD .3 1] UsD
Income
Interedt income 4,150 3.564 18.015
Met gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 2 3,370,326 2509 645 2046583
Total Met Income 3374470 2513200 2.064,598
Expenses
Distribution fees 5 (407,182) (435,175) (120,235
AIFM fees 514 (115,290) {173,163) (46, 713)
Crganisational expenses 5 - - {145,000
Cither expenses 11 (33.686) (182.571) (208051
Total Operating Expenses (556, 108) {740.909) 278
MNet Operating Profit before Finance
Cost and Tax 2818368 1,772,300 1,731,841
Finance Costs
Distributions 1o Unitholders 10 - (81,8200
Nel Operating Profit 2818368 1,772 300 1,650,021
Tolal Comprehensive Profit 2818 368 1,772,3(M) 1,650,021

*The sb-fund lasnched on 12 September 2023,
Income and expenses arose solely from continuing operations.

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensaive Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these financial statements.

13
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

DVMS Target Maturiy IMS Target Maturity

Setfing Fund 202007 Setting Fund 2103
{Investing b Goldman Sechs (Trvesting in Goldman Sachs e Thay
Carporate Bods) Corporate Bonds) Prambursn Fund
For the fmandial year ended For the Mnasdal year ended For the lmancal year ended
31 December 1024 31 December 2024 31 Decembeer 2024
Ush USh Ush
Opening Net Assets atiributable to
Unitholders 75,441,733 B2,959 766 60, 703,675
Proceeds of Units issued - - 14,657,001
Payment for Units redeemed (4,665 954) {10,087, 506) (28,019,748}
Met marease{ decrease) in Net Assels
attributable to Unitholders from
operations 2,409 243 812288 (1,656,221}
Closing Net Assets atiributable (o
Unitholders T3,1585.022 73,0584 548 45,684,797

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

12
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Changes in Equity {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

VNS Target Maturity TMS Target Maturkty

Serting Fund 200007 Setting Fund 2104 Ome Dy
{Investimg b Goldman Sechs (Tvvesting in Goldman Sachs Premlum Fund®
Cerpornie Bomnds) Corporwte Bamds) For the Mimanckal perlod
For il fimancial year ended For the Minamscial year ended ended
31 December 1023 31 December 2023 31 December 2023
UsD USD UsD
Opening MNet Assets attributable to
Unitholders T8 428,787 84265677 2
Procecds of Umits 1ssued . - 62,192 400
Payment for Units redeemed (5,805,392) (3078211 {3,138, 746)
Het increase in MNet Assets
attributable to Unitholders from
operations 2,818,368 1.772.300 1,650,021
Closing Met Assets attributable o
Unitholders 75,441,733 §2.959, 766 G, T03,675

*The aub-fund lmmched an 12 September 2023,

The accompanying noies form an integral part of these financial statements
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Cash Flows fram Operating Activities

Increase{Decrense) in Total Comprehensive
Profit/{Loss)

Adjustments bo reconcile net moome to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Net realized foreign exchange loss on finmcind sssets
and financial lisbilities

Met realised loss on Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts

MNet realised loss an Foreign Currency Tranzlations

et realised (gam) on Total Retum Basket Swaps

Met change in unrealised appreciation on fmancial
assets and hibilties af Fur valae through profit or
loss

MNet change in unrealised appreciation on Total
Fetum Bager Swaps

Net change in unrealised depreciation on Forwand
Foreign Corrency Contricts

Sake of fimancial assets and bsbilities ng fair value
through prafit or loss

Digributions to Unithalders

{Increase) in receivable for investments sold

Decrense in other receivahle

Inerease in distribution fee payable

[Decrease ) in AIFM fee payable

{Drecrease ) in orgeisational fee payable

Increase in lqoidation costs payable®

[Drecrease | in payable for inve gments purchased

Inerense in other payable

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Digribations 1o Unitholders

Proceeds of Units ismed
Payment tor Unite redecmed

Met Cash Flow out of Financing A ctivities

Net Increase' (Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalenis

Cash snd cash exuivalents of the beginning of the
finmcial year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of
the Onancial vear

DMS Target Maturlty  DMS Torget Maiardty
Sebting Fumnd 203007 Setting Fund 2103
(lvesting in Gobdman  (Investing in Goldman Ome-Day
Sacha Corporate Fonds) Sachs Corporate Boads) FPramium Fuand
For the financial year  For the finandal year  For the Anandal year
emded ennded ended
31 Decemibver HI24 31 Drecember 2024 31 Decenber 2024
5D S0 UsD
2,409,243 12288 (1.656.221)
257,539 3,269,735 -
_ - 1,678,052
- - 20,095
5 - {1, 705645)
(3,265 4600 (4,630,653) =
- - (1,928,101)
- - 1,485 456
5,185.1% 10,654,681 14,277,867
- - 345,338
= s (3146T)
- - T4,278
30,170 29,485 23635
{16,658) (62.98T) (20,87%)
# - (13:44%)
50,000 - -
& - (616,805)
17,147 23,596 G9.EES
4,663,137 I.l}._!!“lfﬁ 13,002,060
i - (345,338)
- - 15,034,322
(4,637, 244) {10,087 4146] {27952 902)
(4,637, 244) (10,057 416) (13, 263.914)
25,893 34,659 (261.555)
T 691 63,709 38518
102,254 104, 398 (223.350)

'Rgpr&mh: it pr:wisinn for estiunaled cods ta be incumed i the |ir.|u;d.||IEm'| afl the sub-fund Referio Mote 16,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

DS Target Manarity  DMS Target Matarity
Sefting Fund 2020-07 Sefting Fuand 2103

(Mrvesting In Gobdmon  (Investing in Goldman One-Day
Sachs Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Toads) Premium Fund®
For the financial year  For the finandal year  For ihe Mnascal period
enided ended ended
31 Drecernber 3023 31 December 2023 31 Diecember 2023
[EEA i) LSy VST
Cash Flows from Operating Activides
Ingrease in Total Comprehensive Profit{Loss) 21818368 1,772,300 1,650,021
Adjustments io reconcile net mcome o net cash
provided by operating activities:
Met realised foreign exchange boss on fmancial msets
and financia lisbilities 605,516 1,346,361 -
Net realised (gam) on Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts - - (10046923
Net realised loss on Foreign Currency Translat ions - - 2,680
Net realised (gam ) on Total Returm Basket Swagps - - {33,969)
Met change in unrealised appreciafion on fmancial
aszets and liabiltiies o fuir value itheough prefit or
losa (3,975 842) (3,856,046 -
Net change in unrealised appreciation on Todal
Betum Basket Swaps . . (9718733
Net chmnge in unrealised apprecintion on Forward
Fareign Corrency Contricts - - (942629
Sabe/(Purchase ) of financial assets and liabilitics =
fair vatue through profit or loss 6,205,365 3,491 500 {38,532379)
Distiributions to Unitholders . . 51,520
Decrease in receivable for mvestments sold 5927 . -
Decrense/{Increase) in other receivable 13,463 425 {74,275}
{Drecrenss Y Increass in dignbution fee pavable [1,643) 4, 796) 30178
Increase in AIPM fee payable 37,085 63,939 46,713
Insrense i orgumisaionl fee pavable - - 13,448
Inerense in poyeble for nvestments purchased = = 616,805
Incrense in other payable 14,943 123,178 & 653
Net Cash Flow from f{out of) Operating Activithes 5,726,181 2936.901 (55,195,599
Cash Flows (out of) from Finnncing Activides
Distributions to Unitholders - - (81,8200
Proceeds of Units ismed - - 61,454,693
Payment for Units redeemed (5.816,591) (3.072,974) (3.138,746)
Net Cash Flow (ot o) Trom Finandng Acivities {5,816,591) {3.072,974) 58,234,127
Net (Decremse) Inoresse in Cash mnd Cash
Equivalents (9, 7 10) (136073) 35,528
Cash o cash equivalents ot the beginning of the
finmeinl yensperiod 167,401 201,782 -
Cash snd Cash Equivalents at the end of
the Anancial yearperiod Ti6.691 65,709 38,528

*The sub-fund lmmched on 12 September 2023

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
MNotes to the Audited Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Briongloid Bridge Unit Trost (the “Trost™) was constituted as an [rish umbrella Unit Trost orgamsed
by the Manager and the Trustee wnder the Unit Trusts Act 1990 (the " Act™ ) on 3 June 2020, with the
Registered Office at 4th Floor, 35 Shelboume Road, Ballsbridge, Dublin 4, Ireland, The Trust is
autherised by the Central Bank of Ireland {the “Central Bank™) as a Unit Trust pursnant to the Act.

The Trust is an umbrella fund which may comprise different sub-funds, respectively (the"sub-fund” or
together, the “sub-funds™) each with one or more Classes of Units. Each sub-fund may be constituted
as an open-ended fund, an open-ended fund with limited liquidity or a closed-ended fumnd.

As at 31 December 2024, the Trust had three sub-fumds in existence:

Commenced Operations

DMS Tamget Mathwity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman

Sachs Corporate Bonds) 28 July 2020
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs

Corporate Bonds) 30 March 2021
One-Day Premium Fund 12 September 2023

First two sub-funds offer two Unit Classes, the USD Unil Class and the AUD Unil Class. The third
sub-fand offers four Unit Classes, the USD Accumulating Unit Class, the USD Monthly Distribation
Unit Class (together the "USD Unit Classes"), the JPY Accumulating Unit Class and the JPY Monthly
Distribation Umnit Class (together the "JPY Unit Classes”), The USD Monthly Distribution Unit Class
and the JPY Monthly Distribution Unit Clase (the "Monthly Distritution Unit Classes™) aims o pay
dividends to Umitholders. The Functional Currency of the sub-funds are Umnited States Dollar (U SD™),
as detailed in Note 2 of the financial statements on page 30,

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bomds) is a Unit
Trust with a trust temm of approximately five years. The trust term refers to the penod from the
commencement of operation on 28 July 2020 to Fund Maturity Date (“Maturity Date”), The Maturity
Date is 25 July 2025 or such other date a5 may be determined by the Manager and notified to
Unitholders, being the date on which the term of the sub-fimd expires amnd all remaining Umnits are
redeemed.

DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) is a Umnit
Tmet with a trust term of approximately ten years. The trust term refers (o the perod from the
commencement of operation on 30 March 2021 to Fund Maturity Date, The Maturity Date is 31 March
2031 or such other date as may be determined by the Manager and notified to Unitholders, beang the
date on which the term of the sub-fund expires and all remaining Units are redeemed.

Cme-Day Premium Fund is a Umit Trost with a trust term of approsamately ten vears. The trast term
refers to the period from the commencement of operation on 12 September 2023 to Fund Maturity Date
(*Matmrity Date™), The Maturity Date 15 31 Angust 2033 or such other date as may be determined by
the Manager and notified to Unitholders, being the date on which the term of the sub-fund expires and
all remaining Units are redeemed.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2. BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES
The signi ficant accounting policies and estimation techmigues adopted by the sub-funds are as follows:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the sub-funds have been prepared in compliance with Financial Reporting
Standard 102: “The Financial Reporting Standard appficable in the United Kingdom and Republic of
Freland’ (“FRS 1027), accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland and Irish statute comprising
the Unit Trust Act. 1990,

The format and certain wording of the financial statements have been adapted from those contained in
FRS 102 so that, in the opinion of the Allemative Investment Fund Manager (the © ATFM™), they more
appropriately reflect the nature of the sub-funds’ business as an investment flunds.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, except for the financial
statemnents of DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds) which has been prepared on a basis other than the going concern as the sub-fund will be put
into liguidation after the 25 July 2025, Ligquidation cost expenses expected to be incurred upon closure
of the sub-fimd are expected (o amount to USD 50000 and have been acoried for in these Amancial
statements, The Directors have made an assessment of the Trost's ability (o continue as a going concem
and are satisfied that the Trust has the resources (o continue in operation for a period of at least 12
months from the date of approval of these financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of estimates and
assumpiions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes, The
AIFM believes that the estimates utilised in financial stalements are reasonable and prodent. Actial
results could differ from these estimates. Please refer to Note 12 (g) for Fair Value Estimation
disclosures.

Investment policy

DMS Tearget Maturity Setting Fund 2020207 (Tnvesting in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and DMS
Targer Maturity Setring Fund 2103 {Tevesaing in Goldmean Sachs Corporate Bonds)

In order to achieve its investment objective, the sub-funds will invest all of the proceeds from the issue
of Units (after deducting therefrom the costs and expenses in connmection with the establishment of the
sub-funds and the offering of Units and a reserve for other charges and expenses payable out of the
aszets of the sub-funds) in cemtain performance-linked notes {the “MNotes™ ) (o be izsued by Luminis 11
Limited, special purpose vehicle domiciled in the Cayman Islands (the " Notes [ssuer”). Special purpose
vehicles are companies whose purpose 15 (o conduct business such as the issuance of bonds, and are
generally used in the securitisation of assets and the issuance of structured notes.

The MNotes will provide the sub-funds and each Unit Class with the following exposures:

I. Exposure toa portfolio of fixed income instruments (the “GS Bomds™) 1ssued by The Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc (the “GS Bonds Izsuer” ) and denominsted in the cumency of the relevant
Class of Units (the “Fixed Portion™); and

Exposure to 3 symhetic port folio which provides a returm which 1= inked to the performance of
a basket of certain investment funds (the “Active Portion” or the “Strategy™ ).

13
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment policy (Continued)

DS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (fnvesting in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and DVE
Target Mahoity Setting Fund 2103 Tnvesirng in Goldmean Sachs Corpovate Bonds) (Continued)

The Strategy consists of a mumber of investment funds (the "Underlying Funds") having individual
strategies and cash minus necessary costs to compose a basket, and aims for stable excess retums in
vanous environments. The weightings to be allocated to each Underdying Fund will be determined
wpon laomeh in order to ensure that the risk level is equally distributed between the Underlying Funds
(the “Underlying Basket" )

=Dy Premiune Fund

I order to achieve its investment objective, the sub-fund will generally invest all of the proceeds from
the issue of Units (after deduction of costs and expenses) in ome or more tolal retom swaps (each a
“Total Return Swap™ ) to be traded with Goldman Sachs International Bank (the “Swap Counterpany™)
pursuant 1o a swap agreement (the “Swap Agreement”™ ).

The Total Retum Swap will be a fully-fiunded swap and will provide the sub-fund with exposure to the
Strategy, a5 descabed in the Supplement to the Prospecius dated 9 Aunguost 2023, The sub-fund's
exposure to the Total Remrn Swap will be (i) increased in the event that the sub-fund receives net
subscriptions and (i1 ) decreased in the event that the sub-fimd receives net redemptions, on a paticular
Subscription Day / Redemption Day. The performance of the sub-fund will be determined by the
performance of the Strategy.

In addition to entering info the Total Retum Swap, the sub-fand may hold cash pending investment,
the returm of monies to investors or to allow the sub-fund (o meet cenain ongoing charges and expenses
which may arise in the course of operations of the sub-fund.

The =ub-fund may accept collateral in the context of the Total Retum Basket Swap, Such collateral
will be of an appropriate type for the given transaction and the particular counterpany and may be in
the form of cash or debt. For detals of the non-cash collateral received by the sub-fund at the 31
December 2024, refer to Appendix I11to these financial statements.

The Investment Manager intends (o hedge the foreign currency exposure of the JPY Umi Classes in
order that investors in such classes receive returns substantially in line with that which would be
achieved in the Functional Curency, The financial instruments used to implement such strategies will
be assets / liabilities of the sub-fund as a whole. However, such transactions will be clearly attributable
to the relevant JPY Unit Class amd the gains / losses on and the costs of the relevant financial
instruments will accrue solely to the relevant JPY Unit Class,

Accounting for Invesiments

Investment tranzactions are recorded on a trade date basis. Realised gains and losses on sales of
investments are calculated on a “first in - first out” ("FIFO"} basis. The associated foreign exchange
movements between the date of the purchase and the date of the sale of financial assets are inclnded in
nel gain on financial assets ab far value through profit or loss m the Statement of Comprehensive
Income,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Valuation of Investmenis

Om imitial application of FRS 102, in accounting for its financial instruments a reporting entity is
required to apply either a) the full requirements of FES 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments and
Other Financial Instruments, b) the recognition and measurement provisions of 1AS 39 Financial
Instraments: Recognition and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial
Instmuments and Cther Financial Instruments, or ©) the recognition and measurement provisions of
International Financial Reporting Standard (*[FRS") 9 Financial Instruments and only the disclosure
requirgments of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments and Other Financial Instruments. The
sub-funds have chosen to implement b) the recognition and measurement provision of IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and only the disclosune requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial
Instmuments and Cther Financial Instraments.

In accordance with FRS 102 the sub-funds have classified all of itz investments as financial as=ets or
liabilities designated at fair value throngh profit or loss, Investments are initially recognised at the fair
valoe of the consideration given, with transaction costs for such instruments being recognised directly
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Investments are subsequently remeasured at fair value at
the financial yvear end. Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date — the date on
which the sub-funds commuit to purchase or sell the asset,

Foreign exchange hedging may be wilised for the benefit of a panicular Hedged Class and its cost and
related liabilities and'or benefits shall be for the account of such Class only. Accordingly. any
appreciation or depreciation of the Net Asset Value of the sub-funds resulting from expenses, income,
gains and losses that are attribntable to any foreign exchange hedging in respect of a Hedged Class
shall be attributable solely to the Hedged Class to which it relates.

The value of the assetz of each sub-funds shall be determined in respect of each Valuation Daie as
follows:

(a) secunities, including debt and equity securities, which are quoted, listed or traded on or under
the rules of any market will be valued at the cloging bid price as at each Valuation Point. If the
secunty 1= normally quoied, listed or traded on or under the rules of more than one market, the
relevant market will be that which Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited (the
“Manager” ) determine provides the fairest citerion of value for the security. If prices for a
secunty quoted, listed or traded on the relevant market are not available at the relevant time or
are unrepresentative in the opinion of the Mamsger such secunty will be valued ot such valoe
as will be estimated with care and good faith as the probable realisation value of such security
by the Manager,

(b any security, including dett and equity secunties, which is not nomally quoted, listed or
traded on or under the rules of a market or in respect of which the Manager determines that
the clesing bid price az set ont above is nol representative of itz fair market value, will be
valued at its probable realisation value as determined with care and in good faith by the
Manager. The performance linked notes held are priced on a daily basis by a price received
from Goldman Sachs:

6
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Valuation of Invesiments (Conflinued)

(<) derivative instruments inchoding swaps, inferest rate futures contracts and other financial
futures contracts which are traded on a market will be valued at the settlement price as
determined by the relevant market at the close of business on that market on the Valuation
Date, provided that where it is not the practice of the relevant market to quote a settlement
price, or if a seitlement price is not available for any reason, such instruments will be valued
al their probable realisation value estimated with care and good faith by the Manager. The
Total Return Basket Swaps are valued using prices provided daily by the Swap Counterparty,
without adjustment,

{d) credit defanll swap instruments which are not dealt on a market will be valued on each
Valuation Date a the evaluated mean by reference to freely available market quotations
supphed by an independent pricing agent or & the price obtained from the counterpariy ora
party appointed by the Manager. All other derivative instruments which are nod dealt on a
market will be valued on each Valuation Date at the bid price by reference to freely available
market quotations supplied by an independent pricing agent or at the price obtained from the
counterparty or a party appomted by the Manager;

=] Units in collective investment schemes will be valued on the basis of the latest published Met
Aszzet Value of such Units. If such prices are unavailable, the Units will be valued at their
probable realisation value estimated with care and good faith by the Manager,

(f1 assets denominated in a cumency other than in the Functional Currency of the relevant sub-
fund shall be converted into the Functional Currency af the rate (whether official or otherwise )
which the Manager deems appropriate in the circumstances,

(g) cash deposits and similar assets will be valued at their face value together with acerued interest
unless in the opinion of the M anager any adjustment should be made to reflect the fair valne
thergof: and

() realised and unrealised gains and losses on invesiments represent the difference between
disposal proceeds or valuation and historic cost, Realised and unrealised gains and losses on
investments ansing during the financial vear are dealt within the Statement of Com prehensive
Income.

Forward Foredgn Currency Contracts

The One-Day Premium Fund may enter into Forward Foreign Currency Comtract in connection with
settling planned purchases or sales of secunties to hedge the cumency exposure associated with some
or all of a sub-fund’s securities or as a pan of an investment strategy. A Forward Foreign Curmency
Contract is an agreement befween two pamies to buy and sell a cumency at a set price ona future date.
The fair value of a Forward Foreign Currency Contract fluctuates with changes in foreign cwrrency
exchange rates. Forward Foreign Cumrency Contracts are marked to market daily and the change in
value is recorded by the sub-fund as an unrealised gain or loss. Realised gains or losses equal to the
difference between the value of the contract at the tme it was opened and the value at the time 1t was
closed are recorded upon delivery or receipt of the cirrency of, ifa Forward Foreign Cumrency Contract
is offset by entering into another Forward Foreign Currency Contract with the same broker, upon
seltlement of the net gain or loss,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial

Position when there was a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the Bability simuoltaneonsly.

As of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, none of the financial assets and habilitnes are offset
ifi the Statement of Financial Position.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
Met gain/(loss) on Minancial assets at Fair value through profit or loss

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

UsD USD»
Realized gain on investments and foreign exchange 3,008 7,645
Realised (loss ) on investments and foreign exchange (260,547 (613.161)
Total net realised (loss) (257,539) (605,516)
(Decrease) in unrealised appreciation on investments
and forgign exchange (903) (121)
Increase in wnrealised depreciation on investments
and foreign exchange 3.270.363 3.975963
Total net increase in unrealised
appredation/{depredation) 3.269.460 3975842
Net gain on Mnancial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 3,011,921 3 370,326

DMS Targel Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

MNet gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

M December 2024 31 December 2023

USD UsD
Realised gain on investments and foreign exchange 4,766 2363
Realised (losg) on investments and foreign exchange (3.274.501) {1,348,724)
Total net realised (loss) {3,269,735) (1.346.361)

I3
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

{Continued)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

(Decrease) in unrealised appreciation on investments
and foreign exchange

Increase in unrealised depreciation on investments
and foreign exchange

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

Total net increase in unrealised
appredation/{depredation)

Net gain on finandal assets at fair value
through profit or loss

UsSD UsSD
(250) {302)
4,630,903 3,836,308
4,630,653 3,856,006
1,360,918 2,509,645

One-Day Premium Fond

Net gain/{loss) on financial assets al fair value through profit or loss

Realizsed gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts
Realized (loss) on Forward Fereign Currency Contracts
Realized gain on Foreign Currency Translations
Realized (logz) on Foreign Currency Translations
Fealized gain on Total Retum Basket Swaps

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

Total net reallsed (loss)/gain

(Decrease ) Increase in unrealized appreciation on
Forward Foreign Currency Conlracts

[Decrease) in unrealised depreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Contracts

Increase in unrealised appreciation on Total Return
Bazket Swaps

Total net increase in unrealised
appredation/{depredation)

Net (loss)gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

UsD Usp
64,045 103,127
(2,742,077) (2.435)
154,660 197,237
(174,758) (199917)
1, 705,645 33,969
{992 485) 131,981
(856,509) 843,860
{628,987) (1,231}
1928101 271,973
442,605 1,914, 602
{549,880) 2,046,583
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Forelgn Exchange Translation

Frneiional and Presentanion Curveney

The functional and presentational currency of each sub-fund is US Dollar (*USD™ ). This is considered
1o be the curency of the primary economic environment of each sub-fund,

Transaciions and Balances

As=zets and liabilities denominated in cwrrencies other than the functional cumrency of the sub-fimds are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates mling al the financial year end date.
Tran=actions in currencies other than the functional currency of the sub-funds are translated info the
functional currency at the exchange rates mling at the dates of the transactions, Gaing and losses on
forgign exchange transactions are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in
determining the result for the financial vear. Proceeds from issuance and amounts paid on repurchase
of Units are translated at the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions,

Transaction costs

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair valoe through profit or loss are recognised at fair value.
Transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Gains and losses ansing
from changes inthe fair value of the financial assets or financial labilities a1 fair valae through profit
or 1oss category are presented in the Statemend of Comprehensive Income in the financial vear in which
they arise.

Receivable for investmen s sold/Payable for investments purchased

Receivable for investments sold/Pavable for investments purchased represent pavables for secunties
purchased and receivables for secunties sold that have been contrcted for but not vet delivered on the
Statement of Financial Position date.

Expenses
Expenses are recognised on the accrml basis.

Net Asset Value Per Unit
The Net Asset Value per Unit is calenlated by dividing the Total Wet Assets of the sub-fiunds by the
number of Units in issue. All Units are issued and repurchased at this price.

The Units can be put back into the sub-fimds at any time for cash equal (o a proportional share of the
sub-fands' Met Asset Value. The Unit is carried at the repurchase amount which is payable at the
financial year end date if the Unitholder exercized the right to put the Unit tack in the sub-funds,

Taxation

Under current law and practice, the sub-funds qualify as an investment undenaking as defined in
Section 7398 of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. The sub-funds are not chargeable to
Irish tax on its income or capital gains, However, [nsh tax can arise on the happening of a “chargeable
event”. A chargeable event includes any distribution payments to Unitholders or any encashment,
repurchase, redemption, transfer or cancellation of shares and any deemed disposal of Units for Insh
tax purposes ansing as a result of holding Units in the sub-funds for a period of eight years or more.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Mo tax will arise in respect of chargeable events in respect of a Unitholder who:

(1) isan Exempt Irish Investor (as defined in Section 7390 of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1597,
as amended) who has provided the sub-funds with the necessary signed statutory declarations:
or

(i} is neither Irish resdent nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes at the time of the
chargeable event, provided, in each case, that the necessary signed statutory declaration in
accordance with Schedule 2B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended is held by the
sub-funds.

Capital gains and interest received by the sub-funds may be subject to non-recoverable withholding
ta i the countries of orgin

3. CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT

Cazh comprises current deposite with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily comvertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an msigm ficant nsk of changes
in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting shon-term cash commitments rather than of
investment or other purposes,

DMS Targetl Maturlty Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
31 December 2024

Hed by: UsD
BEH 210
AME, London 19,707
Sumatomo Mitsul Trust Bank, London 82,667

102,584

31 Dvecember 2023

Held by: USD
BBH 188
BNP Paribas, Paris 21,537
JPMorgan Chase, Mew York 54,8966

76,691

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
31 December 2024

Held by: UsD
BBH 412
ANZ, London 9,781
Sumitomo Mitsul Bank Corporation, Tokyo 494,205
104,398

31
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Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

3. CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT (Continued)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

(Continued)

Held by:

BEH

ANZ, Hong Kong

Sumitomo hMitsni Trost Rank, L ondon

Ome-Dav Premiom Fund

Held by:
BEH
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, London

Held by:
BEH
JPMuorgan Chase, MNew York

4. FEES PAYABLE

31 December 2023
USD

217

0185

56,107

65,709

31 December 2024
USD

(223437)

107

(223 330)

3 December 2023
UsD

1,515

37.013

38518

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Professional fees
Service expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

31 December 2024

M December 2023

UsD UsD
44,497 35,550
1206 637
12,765 5.134
SH468 41.321

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Fixed operating expenses
Service expenses
Miscellaneons expenses

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

UsDx UsD
854,167 845,024
1,680 1.124
17.924 4,027
873,771 850,175
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4. FEES PAYABLE (Continued)

Ome-Dav Premiom Fund

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

Usp usD

Legal expenses 42,798 -
Registration expenses 29431 6,630
Service expenses 307 11
Migcellaneons expenses 7.002 3012
79,538 9,653

5. FEES

The fees and charges payable to the Manager and the Investment Manager, which will apply to each
sub-fand or to different Classes of Unit for each sub-fund, are specified in the relevant Supplement.

Management and Invesiment Management Fees

In respect of its provision of management services to the sub-funds, the Manager receives a
management fee (the “Management Fee” ) on a sliding scale at a maximum rate of 0_15% per anmm
of the Met Asset Value of the sub-funds. The Management Fee is subject to an annual mimimum fee of
USD 125,000 per annum for DM S Target Matunity Setting Fund 2020-07 {(Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and DMS Target Matunity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and USD 155,000 for One-Day Premium Fund. The Management Fee accrues at
each Valeation Point and i= paid monthly in arrears together with any reasonable and docomented out
of pocket expenses incurred by the Manager in the performance of its duties that are not covered by
the Management Fee.

The Manager is responsble for paying the fees and expenses of the Invesment Manager, the
Administrator, the Trustee and the Aunditor (for the anmual audit only). For the financial year ended
31 December 2024, the Manager eamed a fee of USD 129,290 (31 December 2023, USD 1152407 of
which USD 30,446 (31 December 2023: USD 47 104) was owtstanding at financial year end for DMS
Targel Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), USD 75,213
(31 December 2023; USD 123,163) of which USD 11,988 (31 December 2023: USD 74,975) was
cutstanding at financial year end for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman
Sachs Corporate Bonds) and USD 155,000 (31 December 2023; USD 46,713) of which USD 25,834
(31 December 2023; USD 46,713 ) was outstanding at financial vear end One-Day Premiom Fund. For
the financial year ended 31 December 2024, Management Fee of DM S Target Matunity Setting Fund
2103 (Investing in Goldman Sache Corporate Bonds) was lower than minimwm fee of USD 125000
due to Management Fee waiver of USD 10,587 and additional reduction of USD 41,666,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

5. FEES (Continued)

Distribution Fees

The Manager has appointed SMBC Tmst Bank Ltd (the “Distributor” ) as the distribator in Japan,
responsible for purchasing the Units from the Manager and completing subscription orders placed by
investors in Japan (only) in accordance with Japanese law. Distribution fees of 0.53% per annum of
Met Asset Value for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and DMS Target Matunty Seting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and 0.80% per annim for One-Day Premium Fund are payable o the Distributors
om a per Unit basis. For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024, the Distribution fee incurred was
USD 391,147 (31 December 2023 USD 407,182) for DM3 Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07
(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bomds)., out of which USD 63925 was payable at financial
year end (31 December 2023: USD 33,755), USD 415,968 (31 December 2023: USD 435,175) for
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), ont of
which USD 63,681 was payable al financial year end (31 December 2023: USD 34,196) and
USD 442,584 (31 December 2023: USD 120,23%) for One-Day Premium Fund, out of which
USD 62,813 (31 December 2023; USD 3%, 178) was payable at financial year end.

Administrator and Trustee Fees

The Administrator and Trostee is enfitled to receive fees calculated as a percentage of the Net Asset
Value of each sub-fimnd for the provision of administration and trustee services respectively, The fees
of the Admimistrator and the Trustee are charged out of the Management Fee received by the Manager
or out of the assets of the relevant sub-fund as may be specified in the relevant Supplement. The fees
and the expenses of the Administrator and Trustee are payable monthly in arrears, and are calculated
at a rate of 0.04% for the first USD 1 billion of the aggregate Net Asset Value of the sub-fiunds of the
Trust, 0.035% on the next USD 1.5 billion and 0.03% above USD 2.5 billion. The Administrator and
Trustee are also entitled to receive additional fees from the sub-funds to cover any reasonable and
documented ont-of-pocket expenses,

Agent Securities Company fees

The Agent Securities Company in Japan is entifled to an annual fee rate of 0.01% of the Net Assets of
the sub-funds. This fee is payable monthly in arrears and is accrued on a daily basis. Any reasonable
disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Agent Securities Company for client
services carried out on behalf of the sub-funds are bome by the sub-funds. For the financial year ended
31 December 2024, the Agent Securities Company fee incurred was USD 7380 (31 December 2023:
USD 7.685) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds), ont of which USD 1,206 was payable at financial year end (31 December 2023: USD 637},
USD 7,549 (31 December 2023: USD §,211) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing
in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), ont of which USD 1,680 was payable at financial yvear end
(31 December 2023 TSI 1,124) and USD 5532 (31 December 2023 USD 1,503) for Ome-Day
Premium Fund, out of which USD 307 (31 December 2023: USD 11} was payable ot financial year
end

Auditor's Remuneration

The statutory andit fee (excluding value-added tax and cut-of-pocket expenses incurred by the anditor
in comnection with their sudit work), which is paid by the Manager on behalf of the sub-fand, for the
financial year amounted to USDr 36,524 (31 December 2023 USD 36,943). There were no other
assurance services, tax advisory services or other non-andit services paid to the Statutory Anditors
during the fimancial year ended 31 December 2024 or during the financial year ended
31 December 2023,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

5. FEES (Continued)

Establishment and Organisational Expenses

The establishment and organisational expenses (including expenses relating to the drafting of the
Prospectus, the negotiation and preparation of the material contracts, the printing of the Prospectus and
the related marketing material, and the fees and expenses of its professional advizers) incwred
commected with the initial offering of Units in respect of the sub-funds are nol expected to exceed
EUR 25,000 for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds), USD 125,000 for DMS Tanget Matunty Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and USD 165,000 for Cme-Day Premiom Fund.

The financial statement Net Asset Valoe per Umnit s calculated with orgamisational expenses being
expensed to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, which totaled USD 16,387 (31 December 2023
USD 145,000) for One-Day Premium Fund. For the purpose of calculating the Net Asset Value per
Unit for Unithhelder dealing, organisational expenses are being amortised over the first three financial
vears of the lifetime of the Funds. USD 98413 (31 December 2023: USD 130.447) for One-Day
Preminm Fund was amontised in the Unitholders calculation for the financial vear ended 31 December
2024, Organisational expenses for DM S Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman
Sachs Corporate Bonds) and DM 3 Target Matunity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) (31 December 2023: USD 57,231 ) were fully amontised for the financial year ended
31 December 2024,

Fixed Operating Expenses

The 2103 Fund incurs cenain minimum opérating expenses (being the minimum Management Fees)
during the life of the Fund o the Fund Matunty Date (the “Fixed Operating Expenses”™). In order 1o
ensure that Unitholders are treated as fairly as possible with respect to such Fixed Operating Expenses
(and to ensure that in the event of redemptions by Unitholders prior to the Fund Maturity Date,
remaining Unitholders do not bear a higher proportion of the Fixed Operating Expenses), the Fund has
calculated the Fixed Operating Expenses and such Fixed Operating Expenses shall be amortized over
the first 3 years of the Fund,

For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024, the Fixed Operating Expenses incurred was
USD 20976 (31 December 2023: USD 163,519) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), out of which USD 854,167 was payable at financial
vyear end (31 December 2023 USD 845,024,
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Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

The following tables detail the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities held by the
sub-funds as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023,

Financial assets af Fair value through
profit oF loss
Total Retum Baskel Swaps
Performance-linked Notes
Unrealised appreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Comracts
Total Financial assets at fair valoe
through profit or loss

Financial liabilities af Fair value through
profit or loss
Unrealised depreciation on Forward
Foreign Cumrency Comracts
Total Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assefs af Fafr value throungh
profit or loss
Total Retiorm Baskel Swaps
Performance-linked MNotes
Unrealised appreciation on Forward
Foreign Cumency Comracts
Total Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at Fair value through
profit or loss
Unrealised depreciation on Forward
Foreign Cumency Comracts
Todal Financial liabilities at falr value
through profil or loss

DMS Target Maturkty  DAIS Target Maturity
Setting Fand 2020.07 Setting Fund 2103
{Tonvesting in Goldnan  {Investing in Groldman Che-Dhay
Sachs Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bonds) Premimm Fund
Asat As ot As ot
A1 December 2024 31 Deveniber 20T4 31 Dreceniber 2024
P51 USD UsD
- . 46,294,082
73,313,987 537,110 -
- 87.351
73,313,957 74,537,110 46,351,433
- 630218
60218
DMS Target Maturkty  DMS Target Maturhty
Setting Fuand 2020.07 Setting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman  {Investing in (roldman Ul Dby
Bachs Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bonds) Preminm Fund
An at As at As al
31 December 2023 31 Devernber 2023 31 [recember 2023
L) UsD USD
- - 59,636,333
715487222 83 860,833 -
= 243,860
15487222 53,960,533 60,581,193
- 1.231
1.231

36
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

7. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The sub-funds are required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in the
Statement of Financial Position (o enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or
potential effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recogmised assets and liabilities.
These recogmised asseiz and liakalities are denvative mstruments that are either sulject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet set-off criteria.

For financial reporting purpose, the sub-funds do not offset denvative assets and denvative hiabilities
in the Statement of Financial Position. Amounts which cannat be of e, bt which could be settled net
under the terms of master netting agreements if certain conditions arise, and collateral received or
pledged, are presented in the tables below:

Ome-Day Preminm Fund

3 December 2024

Assets subject to . Amounts Cash  Security TNel
master netling  available  collateral  collatersl  Amount of
agreement lor ofTset pledged  pledged nssets
Derivative Assets UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD
Forward Foreizn Currency
Contrads 87,351 (87.331) =
Total Return Baskel Swaps 46,294,082 - - 46,294 052
46,381,433 (87.351) - - 46,294,082
Liabilities .
subject to master Amounts Cash  Security Net
netiing avallable  collateral collateral Amount of
agreensnt for oflsed receivid  recelved liabilities
Derivative Liabilities usp usD UsD UsD UsD
Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts 630218 {87.351) - 542 867
630,218 {87.351) - 542867
M December 2023
Assets subject to Amounts Cash  Security Net
master netting available  collateral  collateral  Amount of
agreement for offset pledged pledged assels
Derivalive Assels LIS UsD Usn USID UsD
Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts 943,860 (1,231} - 942629
Total Return Baskel Swaps 59,636,333 - - - 39636333
6,580,193 {1.231) - - 6578962

L]
~3
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

7. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Ome-Day Premiuom Fund (Continued)

M December 2023 (Continued)

Liabilities
subject to master  Amounts Cash  Security N
nefting available collateral collateral Amount of
agrecient for offset  recefved  received  liabilities

Derivative Liabilities UsD USD USD USD USsD
Forward Foreign Currency
Contrads 1,231 (1.231) -

1,231 {1.231)

& SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

There were no soft commission amangements entered into during the financial year ended 31 December
2024 (31 December 2023: nil),

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REFURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The following Unit Classes were available for subscription during the Initial Offer Period For DMS
Target Matwrity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and DMS
Target Matority Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds):

Class Currency Tnitiat Minimuwm Minimum Mo oo
Denomination | Offer Imitial Subsequent Redemption

Frice Subscription | Subscription Amount
per Unii JMinimum Hoelding

USD Unlt | yep USD 10 | USD 150,000 N/A 1 Unit

Class

AUDTIL | o, AUD 10 | AUD 200,000 N/A | Unit

Class

Investors mmst subscribe into a Class in the currency in which that Class is denominated. Repurchase
payments are also made in the corency in which the relevant Class is denominated.

Following the end of the Initial Offer Period, it 15 not anticipated that further subscriptions into the sub-
funds will be accepled, save that the Directors may, in their sole discretion, decide to declare a
Subscnption Day on any Business Day. In such circumstances, Units in the sub-funds will be available
for subscription at the Net Asset Value per Unit (less any duties and charges) on the relevant
Subscription Day and the Directors will confirm details of the relevant Subscription Cut-OfF Time and
date by which settlement should be made in respect of any such subscription.

A Unitholder may submit a redemption request, in accordance with the requirements in respect of any
Redemption Day, by submitting, a redemption request in advance of the relevant Redemption Cut-OfT
Time. Units will be redeemed at the Met Asset Value per Unit of the relevant Unit Class on the relevant
Redemption Day. The aggregate redemption procecds payable to a Unitholder will be rounded down
to the nearest whole USD 0.01, in the case of the USD Unit Class and AUD 0.01, in the case of the
AUD Umit Class. The benefil of any such rounding will be retamed for the account of the sub-funds,

33
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (Continued)

For the purposes of calculating the redemption price of a Unit, the Trustee and’or the Manager may
deduct from the Net Asset Value per Unit an amount which itthey consider(s) to be an appropriate
allowance (o reflect fiscal and sale charges which would be incurred for the account of the sub-funds
in realising asseis or closing out positions to provide sub-funds to meet redempiion requesis on a
particular Redemption Day.

It is generally expected that redemption proceeds will be circolated to Unitholders within 5 Business
Days of the relevant Redemption Day.

All remaining Units in the sub-funds will be compulzorily repurchased on the Funds Matnrity Dates
and the proceeds of repurchase will be sent to Umnitholders within 5 Business Davs of redemption

The following Unit Classes were available for subscription during the Initial Offer Period for One-Day
Premium Fund:

Class Currency Initial OfMer Minimum Initial | Minimuom Mlini mum
Denomination | Price Subscription Subsequent Redemplion
per Unit Subscription | Amount
/Mini mum
Huolding
UsD
Accumulating | USD USsD 10 USD 150,000 NiA I Undt
Unit Class
USD Maonthly
Distribution s S0 10 LSy 150,000 M 1 Uit
Unit Class
JPY
Accumulating | JFY JPY 1,000 TPY 150,000,000 NiA I Unit
Unit Class
JPY Monthly
Distribution JIPY JPY 1,000 TPY 150,000,000 NiA I Unit
Unit Class

Investors must subseribe into a Class in the currency in which that Class is denominated. Repurchase
payments are also made in the curency in which the relevant Class is denominated.

Following the end of the Initial Cffer Period, Units in the sub-fund will be available for subscription
at the Met Asset Value per Unit {less any duties and charzes) on the relevant Subscription Day.
Completed subscription applications should be submutted by the Subscription Cut-OfT Time in
accordance with the requirements of the Prospectus. Cleared settlement monies are required to be
forwarded on the third Business Day falling after the relevant Subscoption Day.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (Continued)

A Unitholder may submit a redemption request. in accordance with the requirements in respect of any
Redemption Day, by submitting a redemption request in advance of the relevant Redemplion Cut-OfF
Time. Units will be redeemed at the MNet Asset Value per Unit of the relevant Unit Class on the relevant
Fedemption Dvay. The aggregate redemption proceeds payable to a Unitholder will be rounded down
ta the nearest whole USD 0,01, in the case of the USD Umnit Clasges and JPY 1, in the case of the IPY
Unit Classes, The benefit of any such rounding will be retained for the account of the Fund. For the
purposes of calculating the redemption price of a Umit, the Trostee and’or the Manager may deduoct
from the Met Asset Value per Unit an amount which ivthey consider(s) to be an appropriate allowance
to reflect fiscal and sale charges which would be incurred for the account of the Fund in realising assets
or closing out positions to provide funds (o meet redemption requests ona paticular Redemption Day,

It is generally expected that redemption proceeds will be circulated to Unitholders within 5 Business
Daye of the relevant Redemplion Day,

All remaining Umits in the sub-funds will be compulzorily repurchased on the Funds Maturity Dates
and the proceeds of repurchase will be sent 1o Unotholders within 5 Business Davs of redemption.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

M December 2024 31 December 2023
USD Unit ALY Unit USI Unit AUD Unit
Class Class Class Class
Mumbers of Units omstanding at
the beginning of financial year 7327416 1,334,915 7,935,866 1.395373
Mumber of Units issued - - - -
Mumber of Umis redeemed {453.615) {71.434) (608450 {60.458)
Nuombers of Units outstanding
at the end of finandal vear 6,873,801 1,263 481 7,327,416 1.334.915

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

M December 2024 31 December 2023
USDr Unit AUD Unit LIS Unit ALUD Unit
Class Class Class Class
Numbers of Units outstanding at
the beginming of financial year 10,370,514 1,229436 10,302,722 1,238,393
MNumber of Units 1ssued - - - -
Wumber of Units redeemed (1,232.715) (106,473) (432,208) (8.957)
Numbers of Units outstanding
at the end of finandal vear 9,087,799 1,122,963 10,370,514 1,229,436
40
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (Contnued)

One-Day Preminm Fund

31 December 2024

UsD LUsD JPY JPY
Accumulating Monthly Accumulating Monthly
Unit Class  Distribution Unit Class  IMstribution
Unit Class Unit Class
Mumbers of Units outstanding at
the begirming of financial year 2.328.167 227.292 3791430 LI135470
Number of Urnits 1ssued 1,052,879 219,090 212,751 2.571
MWumber of Units redeemed (649,136} (21,377 (2,176476) (904,288)
Numbers of Units outstanding
at the end of Mnandal year 2,732,910 355,005 1,827,708 233,753
31 December 2023
UsD USD JPY JPY
Accumulating Nonthly Accumulating Monthly
Unit Class  Distribution Unit Class  Distribution
Unit Class Unit Class
Mumbers of Units onistanding at
the beginming of financial
periad - - - -
Mumber of Units issued 2359703 227,292 4,214,764 1135470
Mumber of Umnits redeemed {30,536) - {423,334) -
Numbers of Units outstanding
at the end of fimandal period 2,319.167 227,292 3,791,430 1135470

Payable for sub-fund Units repurchased as at 31 December 2024 18 presented in the Statement of
Financial Position and amounts to USD 28,710 (31 December 2023; USD nil) for DM S Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), USD 7,520 (31 December 2023;
USD 7.430) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds) and USD 66,846 (31 December 2023: USD nil) for One-Day Premium Fund,

10. DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The distribwtion policy for the sub-funds will be determined by the Manager from time to time and set
out in the relevant Supplement.

The distribution policy of DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) 12 not to make dignbutions to Unitholders but instead to reinvest all the sub-fund's
net income and realised capital gains. Accordingly, an investment in the sub-fimd may not be suitable
for investors seeking curment retums,

Any dividend paid on a Unit of the sub-finds that has not been claimed within six years of its
declaration will be forfeited and will be paid for the benefit of the sub-fimds, No interest will be paid
omn any dividend.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

10. DISTRIBUTION POLICY (Continued)

Cme-Day Premium Fund do not intend to declare dividends in respect of the USD Aceumulating Unit
Class or the JPY Accumulating Unit Class. Any distributable profits relating to such Unit Classes will
remain in the sub-fund's assets and be reflected in the Met Assel Value of such Unit Classes.

The sub-fund ntends te declare dividends, in an amount o be determined by the Directors, in respect
of the USD Monthly Distribution Unit Class and the JPY Monthly Distribution Unit Class ona monthly
basis. The dividends in respect of such Unit Classes will be declared and paid on the fifth calendar day
of cach month, provided that if the fifth calendar day of a relevant month is not a Business Day, the
dividends shall be declared and paid on the next Business Day following the fifth calendar day of the
month (the "Dividend Declamtion Date"),

During the financial year ended 31 December 2024 there were no distributions declared for DMS
Targel Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bomds) and DMS
Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and for the One-
Day Premiom Fund amounted to USD 345,338 (31 December 2023: USD 81,3207,

11. OTHER EXPENSES
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

USD UsD

Professional fees 12,238 26,001
Service expenses 7,380 T.685
Mizscellaneous expenses 16,630 -
36,248 31,686

DMS Targel Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

UsD UsD

Fixed operating expenses 25,976 163,519
Service expenses 7849 8.211
Miscellanecus expenses 25,256 10,841
63,081 182,571

Ome-Day Preminom Fund

M December 2024 3 December 2023

UsD UsD

Legal expenses 122,340 G041
Registration expenses 22,801 6,630
Cwerdrafl expenses 5485 -
Service expenses 5,532 1,503
Miscellaneous expenses 10,474 3,631
166,632 20,805
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

11, FINANCIAL RISKS

The sub-funds' investment activities expose them to the various types of risks which are associated
with the Anancial instruments and markets m which they invest. The Trust's nsk management policies
seek 1o minimise the potential adverse effects of these risks on each sub-fund financial performance in
order to satisfy the investment objectives of the sub-finds.

There 15 no guarantee that in any time period the sub-funds® investment objective will be successful,
Investors should be aware that the value of Units may fall as well as rise. In particular, an investment
in the sub-funds is subject to investment nsk, including the possible loss of the entire principal amount
that an investor may invest, The value of Units may rise or fall, 25 the capital value of the secunties in
which the sub-funds invests may fuctuate. The investment income of the sub-funds is based on the
income eamed on the securnties it holds, less expenses incumed. Therefore, the sub-funds' invesztment
income may be expected to fluctuate in response to changes in such expenses of income.

The main risks ansing from the sub-funds' financial instroments are market nsk (including price nsk,
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk.

(a) Market Risk

Market risk amses mainly from uncerainty aboul fidure prices of financial instruments held.
specifically from other price movements, It represents the potential loss the sub-funds may suffer
through holding market positions in the face of adverse price movements,

The sub-funds are subjects to market price risk, The valee of the sub-funds’ investments will go up and
down as prces of the financial instruments Juctuate.

The sub-fimds' financial instruments are susceptible to market price risk from uncemainty about future
prices of financial instruments. All securities in which the sub-funds invest present a nsk of loss of
capital. See Statement of Investments on pages 10 -12 for details of the sub-funds exposure to maret
price risk. The sub-funds manage price nsk by using vanous investment sirategies,

An increase of 107 in fair value due to changes in valustion assumptions of financial assels as af the
reporting date would have increased the net assets attnbutable to the sub-fimd and profit for the
financial year by USD 7,331,399 (31 December 2023 USD 7,548,722) for DM S Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) USD 7453,711 (31 December
2023 USD 8,386,083) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corperate Bonds) and USD 4,632,555 (31 December 2023: USD 5,963,633) for One-Day Premium
Fund. A decrease of 10% would have had an equal and opposite impact,

(b) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rafe risk anses from the posability of changes in interest rates. 1t will affect fuoture cash Aows
or the fair valuez of financial instruments. At the 31 December 2024 and g 31 December 2023, the
sub-funds do not have a material exposure (0 interest rate nisk.

(¢} Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the sub-funds may not be able to seitle or meet its obligations
on lime or at a reasonable price.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(¢} Liguidity Risk {Continued)

The AIFM maintans an adequate and documented hgquidity management policy in accordance wath
the requirements of Altemnative Investment Fund Managers Directive (the * AIFMD™). The AlFM's
liquidity management policy incindes such procedures as are necessary to enable the AIFM (o assess
and monitor the liquidity sk to which the sub-funds and Trust are or may be exposed {(including
conducting regular stress tests under normal and exceptional liguidity conditions) and to ensure that
the lquidity profile of the investments of the sub-funds comply with the Trst's underlying obligations.

The Trust's policy to manage liquidity is to have sufficient liquidity in the sub-funds to meet its
hatnlities as and when they fall due, under both normal and stressed condibions without inewming undue
loszes or risking damage.

The Trust assesses the liquidity profile of each sub-fumd consistent wath its underlying obligations and
redemption policy during the lifecycle of the sub-fund including at their launch. The Trist ensunes that
liquidity thresholds which are proponionate to the redemption obligations and liabilities of the sub-
fund are set,

A liguidity measurement methodology is in place to assess both the asset side and the lability side, On
the asset side, the methodology is based on a ime-to-liguidate measure and a modelled market valoe
adjustment, based on a series of quantitative variables for different asset classes. The model takes into
account the expected redemption profile of the sub-fund and provides relevant estimates. Thus, the
methodology provides a clear ronte to portfolio managers on projected cash flows in the event of
portfolio (full or partial) liquidation.

The credit terms for settlement of the liabilities of the sub-funds are generally within three months or
less.

(d) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
or commitment that it has entered inte with the Trust. The Investment Manager assesses and measures
the nsk of each investment on s ments and tailors ite credit policy and mondtonng accordingly on a
regular basis,

The maximum exposure to credit nsk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset at
the reporting date.

Brown Brothers Harmman Trustee Services (Ireland) Limited acts as Trustee and Depositary to the
Trust. Cash held via accounts opened on the books of Brown Brothers Hamman & Co. (*BBH™) are
obligations of BEH. Accordingly, while BBH is responsible for exercising reasonable care in the
administration of such agency cash accounts where it has appointed the agent (i.e. in the case of cash
comespondent banks and sub-custodians), it is not liable for their repayment in the event that the agent,
by reason of its bankmptey, insolvency or otherwise, fails to make repayment. Brown Brothers
Harriman & Co. has a long term credit rating of A+ (31 December 2023: A+) as issued by Fitch.

The inability (or perceived inability) of issuers (o make timely payments of interest and principal may
make the values of seconties approximate only to the values placed on such secunties. In the absence

of a liquid trading market for certain securities it may not be possible to establish the fair value of such
securities,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(d) Credit Risk (Continued)
The Motes Issuer is a special purpose company which does not have substantial assets of its own lo
support its obligations under the Notes. Amounts due to the sub-funds will only be paid with funds
paid to the Notes Issuer under any charged agreement{s) and any charged assets, Therefore, the sub-
funds assume full credit nsk of the Notes Issuer, any counterparty and the obligor(s) of any charged
assels,

The Motes will provide the sub-funds and each Unit Class with the exposure 1o a portfolio of fxed
income instruments (the “GS Bonds") issued by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc (the “GS Bonds
Issner™) with a long term credit rating of A (31 December 2023: A) as issued by Fitch,

As at 31 December 2024, the issuer and counterparty for performance-linked notes held by the sub-
funds are Luminis [T Limited (“the Motes Issuer™ ).

While MaplesF 5 Limited ("MFS") i= the registered owner of the Motes Issuer's ordinary shares, these
are held subject 1o a Declaration of Trust ("DOTY). Under the DOT, MFS holds the Notes Issuer’s
shares om trust for the benefit of a "Qualified Charity” (as defined in the DOT) which is legally the
ultimate beneficial owner ("UBO®) of the tmist assets which comprises solely the shares or the
economic value of the shares once the Notes Issuer is formally liguidated, Typically. the nominal value
of these trust assets would be less than 1S3 1,000. There are no bearer shares in the legal structure.

The sob-funds” cash is swept on a nightly basis to pre-approved fnancial institutions. As at 31
December 2024, the institutions where the sub-fonds" cash was held and their respective credit ratings,
at that date, are listed below:

Institution Short Term Credit Indicator
ANZ, London High Grade
Sumitomo Mitsui Bank Corporation, Tokyo Upper Medium Grade
Sumitomo Mitsu Trust Bank, London Upper Medium Grade

(&) Counterpany Risk

Simular to ¢redit nsk, the sub-funds may be exposed (o connterparty nsk, or the nsk that an institution
or other entity with which the sub-funds has unsettled or open transactions will default.

As the One-Day Premium Fund 15 matenally exposed to the Swap Counterpanty, the sub-fund may
suffer significant losses in the event such as default or decline of management or financial situation of
the Swap Comnterparty,

The Manager may from time totime, inits sole discretion, approve additional swap counterparties with
which the sub-fiund may transact. Any such additional counterparties will be disclosed in the financial
statement of the sub-fund.

Goldman Sachs Intemational Bank acts as the Swap Counterparty to the Cme-Dray Premium Fund. The
Swap Counterpanty acls as a primary dealer for European government bonds and is involved in market
making in European government bonds, lending and deposit taking activities, and securities lending.
In exceptional circumstances, the Swap Counterpan y may be unable to fulfil its obligations under the
Swap Agreement due to regulatory reasons, change in the tax or accounting laws relevant to the Swap
Counterparnty, of otherwise. In such circumstances, there is a risk that the sub-fund's investment
strategy could be intermupled or temmunated. In such circumstances, the investment olgective and policy
of the sub-fund may not be achieved and the sub-fund may be umable (o recover any losses incurred.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

12. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(&) Counterparty Risk {Continued)

The atlity of the sub-fund to meet 1tz obligations (o Unitholders wall depend on the receipt by it of
payments owed (o the sub-fund by the Swap Counterparty under the Swap Agreement. As a resull, the
sute-fimd will be exposzed to the creditwonhiness of the Swap Counterparty,

Goldman Sachs Intemational Bank may act as the Strategy Caloulation Agent, The Total Retum Basket
Swap to be entered info by the sub-fund may be highly specialised and there may be no counterparty
cther than Goldman Sachs which provides such an OTC derivative instnuoment.

Goldman Sachs Intemational Bank has a long term credit rating of A+ (31 December 2023 A+)
as issued by Fitch,

(1 Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency sk is the nsk that the fair value of figwre cash flows of the sub-fimds investments
will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Certain of the sub-funds’ assets,
liabilities. income and expenses are denominated in cwrrencies other than its functional currency, As a
result, movement in exchange rates may affect the value of those items. The Investment Manager
momiters this risk on an ongoing basis,

The tables below set out the carrying amount of financial instruments in cach cuarrency:

DMS Target Maturity Sctting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
As at 31 December 2024

AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
{USD) {USID) {LUSI)
Finandal Asseis 7657072 65,759 499 73416571
Finandal Liabilities = {231,549 (231,549
7.657.072 65,527,950 73,185,022

As al 31 December 2023
AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(USI¥) {UsIM {USIy)
Finandal Asseis 8485702 67,078,211 75563913
Financial Liabilities = (122,130 (1221807
B, 485,702 66,956,001 T5441.733

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As oat 31 December 2024

AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(USD) {(USD) (USD)
Finandal Asseis 5,375,535 68,276,560 74,641,508
Finandal Liabilities - (967,547 (956, 59600 )
3375,535 68,309,013 73684548
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12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

() Foreign Currency Risk (Continued)

DMS Targetl Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

{Continued}

As at 31 December 2023
AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(UST¥) {USI¥ {USIN
Finandal Assets 6,102,801 77823741 83,926,542
Finandal Liabilities = (%66, TTH) (966, 776)
6,102,801 T6.856,965 82,950,766

One-Day Preminm Fund

As al 31 December 2024
JPY Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(UI5T¥) {(USIy) {(USIDN
Finandal Assets 87458 46,686,025 46,773.453
Finandal Liabilitles (630.218) {458 463 (1,088,636
{542, 760) 46,227 857 45 684,797

As at 3 December 2023
JPY Balances USD Balances Total Balances
{(USIN) {USIy) {USD)
Finandal Assets 1.298.734 60, 131,969 61,430,703
Finandal Liabililles (1,231) (725.797) (727.028)
1,297,503 29,406,172 60,703,675

As al 31 December 2024, had the AUD strengthensd or weakened by 5% against USD, with all cther
vanables held constant, this would have an approximate effect of USD 382 854 (31 December 2023
LUSD 424,285) for DM S Tarzet Maturnty Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds) and USD 268,777 (31 December 2023 USD 305,140) for DMS Target Setting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) on the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the sub-
famd.

Agat 31 December 2024, had the JPY strengthened or weakened by 5% against USD, with all other
variables held constant, this would have an approximate effect of USD 27,138 (31 December 2023:
U SD 64.875) for Cme-Day Premium Fund onthe Statement of Comprehensive Income of the sub-fund.

(g) Fair Value Estimation
The sub-fund has classified fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

FRS 102 Section 2A.1 on “Fair Value Disclosure™ requires disclosure relating to the fair value
hierarchy in which fair value measurements are categonsed for assets and liabilities. The disclosures
are based on a three-level fair value hierarchy for the mputs used in valuation techmaques to measure
fair value. In March 2006 amendments were made to paragraph 34.22 of this FRS, revising the
disclosure requirements for financial institutions to more closely align the disclosure requirements with
those in IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and lostoncal praciice with those m Insh GAAP.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(g) Fair Value Estimation {Contimeed)

Financial assels and halobities are measured i the Statement of Financial Position at far value, The
fair value measurements are categonised within a three-level hierarchy. The valuation herarchy is
‘based upon the relative observability and reliability of inputs to the valation of each of the sub-funds’
investments. The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication
of the sk associated with investing in those securitics. The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 — The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the sub-
find can access at the measurement date.

The types of assets and liabilities categon=ed in Level 1 genemlly include activelv traded domestic and
cerfain foreign equily securifes, cerain U5, government obligations, denvatives actively traded on a
national securities exchange (such as some futures and options ), ghares of exchange traded funds {even
il their investments are valued wsing Level 2 or Level 3 inputs),

Level 2 — Inputz other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable (1.e. developed
using market data) for the asset or liabality, enther directly or indirectly.

These include investment-grade corporate bonds and certain non-U.8, sovereign obligations, listed
equities, mutnal funds, equity-linked notes and over the counter dervatives. As level 2 investments
include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions,
valustions may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and‘or non4ransferability, which are generally based
on available market information.

Level 3 — Inputs are unobservable (e, for which market data is unavailable) for the asset or liability.

The types ofassets and liabilities categorised in Level 3 generally include, but are not limited to, certain
debt securities (such as asset-backed, mongage-backed, loans and sovereign debt) and dervatives even
though they are valued using broker quotes, cerain debt secunities and denvatives adjusted by 2
specified discount for Bquidity or other considerations; certain sovereign debd secunities valued nsing
comparable securnities issued by the sovereign adjusted by a specified spread; securities whose trading
hias been suspended or that have been de-listed from their current primary trading exchange valued at
the most recent available market or quoded price; securities in defaull or bankruptey proceedings for
which there is no currént market quotation valued al the most recent available market or quoted price;
potential litigation recovenes and interests related to bankrmptcy proceedings; third-party investment
funds where valuations are provided by fand sponsors and which are adjusted for hquidity
considerations a2 well as the timing of the receipt of information and certain securities that are valued
nsing a price from a comparable security related to the same issuer.

The level in the far valne hierarchy within which the fair value measurement 15 categorised is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
eftirety. The significance of an inpul is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety.

If & fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on
unobservable inputs, this may be deemed to fall within Level 3 of the fair value hiemrchy, Assessing
the significance of a particular input o the fair valee measurement in its entirety requires judgement,
considenng Factors specific to the asset or hablity,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(g) Fair Value Estimation (Contined)

The determmation of what constitutes “observable” requires sigmificant judgement by the Investment
Mamager. The Investment Manager considers observable data to be thal market data that is readily
available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and venifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
imdependent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following tables provide an analysis of the fair value hierarchy of the sub-funds' financial assets,
measured at fair value at 31 December 2024 and 2023,

DMS Targetl Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

3 December 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels UsD UsD UsD UsD
Performance-linked notes - - 73.313.987 73,313,987
Total - - 73,313,987 73,313,987
M December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets USD USD UsD UsD
Performance-linked noles - - 75,487,222 75487,222
Total 75,487,222 75,487,222

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Asgels UsD USD UsD UsD
Performance-linked notes - & 74,537,110 74,537,110
Total - - 74,537,110 74,537,110
M December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels UsD USD UsD UsnD
Performance-linked notes - - 33,860,833 83,960,833
Total - - 83,860,833 83, B60, 833
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(g) Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

One-Day Preminm Fund

31 December 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets Ush USD USD UsD
Total Return Basket Swaps - 46,294,082 E 4,294 082
Forward Fomign Cwrency Contiacls - 87.351 - 87,351
Total . 46,381,433 - 46,381,433
Liabilities

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts . 630,218 . 630,218
Total - 630,218 - 630,218
M December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
Assels UsD UsD UsD Usn
Total Retun Basket Swaps - 39,636,333 . 59,636,333
Forward Foreign Currency Contracls - 943,860 - 943 860
Total . 60,580,193 . 60,580,193
Liabilities

Forward Foreign Currenicy Conlracts - 1,231 - 1.231
Total - 1,231 - 1,231

The sub-fund’s assets and labilities not measuned at fair value include cash, short-term receivables and
pavables. The respective balances are carmied at values that reflect a reasonable approximation of their
fair value. In accordance with the requirements of FRS 102, cash balances are classified as Level 1 and
all other asszets and liabilities are classified as Level 2.

Transfers into and owt of levels are recognized at the end of the reporting year. There were no transfers
mio or out of Level 3 dunng the financial year ended 31 December 2024 or 31 December 2023,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(g) Fair Value Estimation (Contined)

The ables below show a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for fair
value measurements of level 3 financial assets of the fair value hierarchy,

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020207 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Level 3 Level 3

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

UsD UsD

Opening balance 75,487,222 78322261

Sales during the financial yvear (5.18571%) (6,204,569

Realised (losses) on investments (258,338) (606,433
Het change in unrealised appreciation on

investments at fair value through profit or 1oss 3,270,322 3,975,963

Closing balance 73.313.987 T8.487,222

As ol 31 December 2024, an mcresse or decrease of 5% in far value due to changes in valuation
assumptions would have an approximate effect of USD 3,66569% (31 December 2023: 3774361 ) on
the net assets attributable to the sub-fund.

DMS Target Maturity Sctting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Level 3 Level 3

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

USD USD

COpening balance 83,860,533 84,842,688

Sales during the financial year {10,684, 1300 {34590,121)

Realized (losses) on investments (3,270,710 (1348042}
Met change in unrealised appreciation on

investments al fair value through profit or loss 4,631,117 3,856,308

Closing balance 74,537,110 83 860,833

As at 31 December 2024, an increase or decrease of 5% in fair value due to changes in valuation
assumptions would have an approximate effect of USD 3,726,856 (31 December 2023: 4,193,042) on
the net assels attributable (o the sub-fund,

Valuation methodology

Two of the sub-funds invest into performance-linked Notes, the fair value of which is determined by
Goldman Sachs, using a valuation model, The key observable inputs and unobservable inputs to this
valuation moxdel are &= follows:
*  Key observable inputs
o Interest rates
oGS credit spread
o Level of the strategy as well as its components
+  key unobservable input
o Implied volatility
o Discount rates and vields
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(g) Faur Value Estimation {Continueed)
Valuation methodology (Continwed)

Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available m the circumstances. The
valuation method being uzed for financial aszets held by the sub-funds that are classified as Level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy is the use of proxy pricing techniques by Goldman Sachs. The vield being nsed
in the proxy pricing is considered the most significant unobservable input wsed which impacts the price
and related fair value of the performance linked notes.

13. EXCHANGE RATES

The following exchange rates have been used to translate assets and liabilities in cumencies other than
L S0 at Anancial year end:

As at As at

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
AUD 1.6086 1.4655
EUR 1.0394 1.1039
JPY 1572000 140 9800

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors of the Manager are not aware of any transactions with related persons dunng the financial
year ended 31 December 2024 and for the fAnancial year ended 31 December 2023, other than those
disclosed in these financial statements. The AIFM, Waystone Management Company ([E) Limited, the
Investment Manager, Waystone Investment Management (IE) Limited, the Agent Secunties Company
in Goldman Sachs Japan Co., Lid are regarded as related panties of the sub-funds under FRS 102
“Related Pany Disclosures”.

Mr. Keith Hazley, Mr. James Allis and Mr. Andrew Kehoe are Directors of the Manager and also
emplovees of Waystone Management Company ([E ) Limited.

Ms. Sarah Wallace and Ms. Andrea Oman are Directors of the Manager and also employees of
Waystone Managemend Company (IE) Limited. M=, Sarah Wallace was appointed to the Board of
Directors of the Manager on 11 July 2024 and M=, Andrea Oman was appointed to the Board of
Directors of the Manager on 31 March 2025,

M=, Samantha Mevlit and Ms, Rachel Wheeler were Directors of the Manager and also emplovees of
Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited and Waystone Governance (UE) Limited, respectively.
Ms. Samantha Mevlit resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 29 Febroary 2024 and
Ms, Rachel Wheeler resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 31 March 2025,

All related parties are transacted at arm’s length.

Fees incumed with relsted paries during the financial year are disclosed in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income. Amounts pavable to related paries af the financial vear are disclosed in
Note 5.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

15, STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PORTFOLIO POSITIONS

The statement of changes in portfolic positions for the financial year has not been presented though
the details may be obtained free of charge from Waystone Management Company (IE) Limted.

16. MET ASSET VALUE AND NET ASSET VALUE FER UNIT

The Met Asset Value per redeemable participating umit 15 calculated by dividing the total net assets (as
calculated for pricing purposes) of the sub-funds by the number of redeemalble participating Units in
izsne, The Met Asset Value per redeemable paricipating unit reported in the Statement of Financial
Position 15 that used for financial siatement parposes,

For the purposes of the financial statements, all organisational expenses, including fees paid to the
professional advisors of the sub-funds, are expensed in the financial year they are incwred in
accordance with FRS 102, Organisational expenses were charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Imcome.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) will be
put into liquidation after the 25 July 2025, Liquidation cost expenses expected to be incurred upon
closure of the sub-fund are expected to amonnt to USED 50,000 and have been accrued for in these
financial statements.

The tables below illustrate the reconciliation between the Net Asset Value for fnancial statement
purposes and the Met Asset Value per Unil for Unitholder dealing purposes.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fond 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As at Asal
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
UsD UsD
Met Asset Value for financial
st#ement piErposes 73,185,022 75.441.733
Add Cumulative additional
orgamsational expenses wntten of T - -
Add Accmed liquidation costs 50,000 -
Met Asset Value for Unitholder
dealing purposes 73,235,022 75441,733
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

16, NET ASSET VALUE AND NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT (Continued)
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As at As al
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
UsD UsD
Met Asset Value For financial
stalement purposes 73,684,548 82,959,766
Add Cumdative additional
organisational expenses written of T - 57.231
Met Asset Value for Unitholder
dealing purposes 73,684,548 83,016,997
One-Day Preminm Fund
As at Asal
3 December 2024 31 December 2023
USD USIx
Met Asset Value for financial
statement purposes 45,684,797 60,703,675
Add: Cumulstive additional
organisational expenses wrilten off 98413 130,447
Met Asset Valve for Unitholder
dealing purposes 45,783,210 50,834,122

17. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Ms. Samantha Mevht resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 29 February 2024,

M=, Sarah Wallace was appoinied as Non-Executive Director to the Board of Directors of the Manager
om 11 July 2024,

There were no other zignificant events occwring during the financial vear ended 31 December 2024,

18. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SINCE THE FINANCIAL YEAR END
Ms, Rachel Wheeler resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 31 March 2025

Ms. Andrea Oman was appointed as Non-Execulive Director to the Board of Directors of the Manager
on 31 March 2025,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

18. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SINCE THE FINANCIAL YEAR END (Continued)
DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) will be
put into liquidation after the 25 July 2025 Liquidation cosl expenses expected to be incurred upon

closure of the sub-fond are expected to amount (o USD 50,000 and have been accrued for in these
financial statements,

There were no other sigmificant events occurring after 31 December 2024 requining financial statement
disclosure.

19, APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Directors of the M anmager on 11 June 2025,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust

Statement of Investments
Asg at 31 December 2024

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Number of Fair Value %o of Net
Shares Security Description UsD Assets

Performance-linked notes (31 December 2023: 100,069 %)
Cayvman [slands

68,399,030 Luminis 11 Limited, USD Class 6G3.676,749 %9.74
12,786,670 Luminis [1 Limited, AUD Class TH37.238 1044
Total Investments 73,311,987 100015
Othier asscts and liabilitics {128,965) (0. 18)
Met Assets atiributable to Unitholders 73,155,022 100

10
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2025
73,491,255 10,988,412
120,450 18,010
73,370,805 10,970,403
6,807,989.900
1,261,343.680
9.67 1,446
9.60 902
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2025
4,490,006 2,774
4,490,006

2020 31 2025 31

2022 10 22 2

2023 12 31 4
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AIFM UCITS
ACD
AEQI AML
SPV
100
ETF ETF
2025
EU 190,082,162,506

EU 7,028,783,687

AIF 503

UCITS

326
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328

2025 31
162.08

2024 12 31
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IE
2024 12 31
2024 2023
33,283,581 5,394,603 44,086,186 7,145,489
29,729,991 4,818,637 22,026,305 3,570,024
10 9,000,000 1,458,720 - -
72,013,572 11,671,960 66,112,491 10,715,513
11 52,164 8,455 76,181 12,347
12 525,272 85,136 870,742 141,130
13 2,825,153 457,901 2,825,153 457,901
3,402,589 551,492 3,772,076 611,378
75,416,161 12,223,451 69,884,567 11,326,891
14 4,490,006 727,740 4,490,006 727,740
14.1 17,918,369 2,904,209 17,918,369 2,904,209
14.2 3,600,000 583,488 3,600,000 583,488
15 31,816,968 5,156,894 23,528,080 3,813,431
15 - - 186,650 30,252
57,825,343 9,372,332 49,723,105 8,059,121
16 17,590,818 2,851,120 20,161,462 3,267,770
17,590,818 2,851,120 20,161,462 3,267,770
17,590,818 2,851,120 20,161,462 3,267,770
75,416,161 12,223,451 69,884,567 11,326,891
2025 29 2025 29
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IE
2024 2023

88,636,558 14,366,213 70,149,292 11,369,797
(26,514,745) (4,297,510) (29,354,208)  (4,757,730)
62,121,813 10,068,703 40,795,084 6,612,067
(39,300, 699) (6,369, 857) (32,819,769)  (5,319,428)
22,821,114 3,698,846 7,975,315 1,292,639

664,135 107,643 8,578 1,390

977,329 158,405 - -
24,462,578 3,964,895 7,983,893 1,294,029
(1,173,690) (190, 232) (690,751) (111,957)
23,288,888 3,774,663 7,293,142 1,182,072
23,288,888 3,774,663 7,293,142 1,182,072
23,288,888 3,774,663 7,293,142 1,182,072

203/305



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00ooO00obDo00DO000Do00oOogOno(Ess?72)
OOooooooooooooooooOo

IE

2024 12 31

2023 4,490,002 727,740 - - 3,600,000 583,488 16,234,938 2,631,359 - - 24,324,940 3,942,586
- - - - - - 7,293,142 1,182,072 - - 7,293,142 1,182,072
4 1 17,918,369 2,904,209 - - - - - - 17,918,373 2,904,210
- - - - - - - - 186,650 30,252 186,650 30,252

2023 12 31 4,490,006 727,740 17,918,369 2,904,209 3,600,000 583,488 23,528,080 3,813,431 186,650 30,252 49,723,105 8,059,121
- - - - - - 23,288,888 3,774,663 - - 23,288,888 3,774,663
- - - - - - (15,000,000) (2,431,200) - - (15,000,000) (2,431,200)
- - - - - - - - (186,650)  (30,252) (186,650) (30,252)

2024 12 31 4,490,006 727,740 17,918,369 2,904,209 3,600,000 583,488 31,816,968 5,156,894 - - 57,825,343 9,372,332
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IE
2024 12 31
2024 2023
24,462,578 3,964,895 7,983,893 1,294,029
90,912 14,735 273,719 44,364
245,988 39,870 7,811 1,266
(664,135) (107,643) (8.578) (1,390)
(186,650) (30,252) 186,650 30,252
23,948,693 3,881,604 8,443,495 1,368,522
(7.368,038)  (1,194,212)  (1,194,482) (193,602)
(2,570,645) (416,650) 7,028,370 1,139,158
14,010,010 2,270,742 14,277,383 2,314,078
(1,514,001) (245,389)  (2,195,115) (355,784)
12,496,009 2,025,353 12,082,268 1,958,294
49,848 8,079 (282,805) (45,837)
664,135 107,643 8,578 1,390
(12,597) (2,042) (83,390) (13,516)
- - (2,825,153) (457,901)
- - (89,780) (14,552)
(9,000,000)  (1,458,720) - -
(8,298,614)  (1,345,039)  (3,272,550) (530,415)
- - 17,918,369 2,904,209
(15,000,000)  (2,431,200) - -
_ . 4 1
(15,000,000)  (2,431,200) 17,918,373 2,904,210
(10,802,605)  (1,750,886) 26,728,091 4,332,089
44,086,186 7,145,489 17,358,095 2,813,400
33,283,581 5,394,603 44,086,186 7,145,489
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IAS 21 2025
IFRS IFRS 2026
IFRS 18 2027
2.4
2.5
2.6
AIFM UCITS
NAV
EMIR FATCA MLRO
IFRS 15
¢!
(¢
G
4

G
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2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10
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2.11

RSU ESPP

2.12
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2.17
2.18
3.
3.1
2024 2023
88,636,558 70,149,292
AIFM UCITS
NAV
2024 2023
1,817,362 1,414,589
1,353,311 824,157
5,847,727 4,871,299
79,044,081 62,773,445
406,645 265,802
207 -
167,225 -
88,636,558 70,149,292
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4.
4.1
2024 2023
13,531,552 8,589,995
1,519,990 927,918
1,015,322 648,979
326,576 196,013
16,393,440 10,362,905
4.2
2024 2023
886,624 536,875
45,437 25,750
8,760 4,114
63,947 28,907
1,004,768 595,646
2024 12 31 37,500
2023 91,875
4.3
2024 2023
147 96
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4.1

4.2
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2024 2023
40,000 53,187
- 9,847
90,912 273,719
275,726 59,507
245,988 7,811
(303,176) 394,741
1,629,300 536,893
16,784,165 17,271,434
16,393,440 10,362,905
1,004,768 595,646
3,139,576 3,254,080
39,300,699 32,819,770
742,847 560,848
2,048,618 1,850,996
23,723,280 26,942,363
26,514,745 29,354,207

977,329 2023
2024 2023

18,842 8,578

638,964 -

6,329 -

664,135 8,578
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7.
7.1
2024 2023
1,173,690 690,751
1,173,690 690,751
7.2
2024 2023
12.5 2023 12.5 22,821,114 7,975,315
25% 2023 25 664,135 8,578
23,485,249 7,983,893
12.5 2023 :12.5 2,852,639 996,914
25 2023 25 166,034 2,145
3,018,673 999,059
(1,155,673) -
(689,310) (308, 308)
1,173,690 690,751
8.
2024 2023
20,309,071 31,568,439
12,974,510 12,517,747
33,283,581 44,086,186
CBI 18
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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2024 2023
A2 AL
A3 AL
HSBC pa3 Aa3
9.
2024 2023
* 6,901,407 6,935,025
3,868,081 1,548,537
1,972,314 386,959
511,742 171,431
1,026,312 160,970
15,025,089 12,137,930
425,046 685,453
29,729,991 22,026,305
* 329,650 2023 59,507
10.
2024 2023
* 9,000,000 -
9,000,000 -
3.5
11.
2024 95,863 95,863
12,597 12,597
2024 12 31 108,460 108,460
2024 19,682 19,682
36,614 36,614
2024 12 31 56,296 56,296
2024 12 31 52,164 52,164
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2023 12,472 12,472
83,391 83,391
2023 12 31 95,863 95,863
2023 11,871 11,871
7,811 7,811
2023 12 31 19,682 19,682
2023 12 31 76,181 76,181
12.
2024 89,780 1,368,293 1,458,073
- (49,848) (49,848)
2024 12 31 89,780 1,318,445 1,408,225
2024 9,015 578,316 587,331
47,084 248,538 295,622
2024 12 31 56,099 826,854 882,953
2024 12 31 33,681 491,591 525,272
2023 89,780 1,085,488 1,175,268
- 282,805 282,805
2023 12 31 89,780 1,368,293 1,458,073
2023 - 313,611 313,611
9,015 264,705 273,720
2023 12 31 9,015 578,316 587,331
2023 12 31 80,765 789,977 870,742
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13.
2023 19 BTA
IE LFMSIL 2023 10 BTA
CBI
LFMSIL 2024 12 31 2,825,153
2023 2,825,153
14.
2024 2023
100,000,000 4,490,006 4,490,006 1 4,490,006 4,490,006
14.1
2024 12 31 17,918,369
2023 17,918,369
14.2
15.
2024 23,528,080 186,650 23,714,730
- (186,650) (186, 650)
23,288,888 - 23,288,888
(15,000,000) - (15,000,000)
2024 12 31 31,816,968 - 31,816,968
2023 16,234,938 - 16,234,938
- 186,650 186,650
7,293,142 - 7,293,142

2023 12 31 23,528,080 186,650 23,714,730
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16.
2024 2023
2,095,493 800,539
4,689,928 5,043,387
1,737,517 -
434,036 492,327
8,633,844 13,825,209
17,590,818 20,161,462
17.
2024 2024 2024
_ (8,054) 18,868
168,729 - 168,729
UK - (1,978,187) (137,473)
IE - (5,278,287) 1,273,576
IE 512 (56,580) (56,068)
UK 653 (7,759) (14,077)
_ - 23,804
Us ( )
- (12,289) (29,540)
IE - (121,745) (143,729)
Lux
93 - 93
208 (642,996) 142
IE - (108,563) (624,897)
UK 96 (1,046,882) 1,230,113
USA - (26,075) -
IE 17,871 (1,138,150) (1,206,219)
UK 105,980 (131,202) (112,179)
Lux 103,730 (1,444,959) (783,890)
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39,858 - 39,858
- - (190, 869)
- (4,780,799) (1,171,272)
- - 9,000,000
- - 79,559
- (1,639) (1,434)
- - 881,593
- - 10,452
- - 5,098
- - (14,479)
- - (20,000)

2023 2023 2023
- (723,862) 28,755
- (2,360,500) (182,756)
- (6,645,508) (2,750,726)
- (8,422) (8,422)
- (1,623) (2,065)
- - (18,037)
- (42,961) 233
- (1,192) 10,266
- (383,030) -
- (5,073) 341,866

163,837 (1,338,856) -
- (727,502) (459,989)
- (105,108) -
- - (210,981)
- - (210,576)
- (3,594,896) -
- - 332,028
- - 10,452
- - 2,023
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- - (11,403)
KB
- - (920,288)
L
w - (571,319) -
16 2024 12 31
18.
18.1
18.1.1
2024 2023
33,283,581 44,086,186
6,901,407 6,935,025
3,868,081 1,548,537
3,510,368 719,360
15,025,089 12,137,930
9,000,000 -
71,588,526 65,427,038
2024 2023
7,231,057 6,994,532
(329,650) (59,507)
6,901,407 6,935,025
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18.1.2

2024 12 31 17,590,817
2023 20,161,462

18.1.3

18.1.4

18.1.5

18.1.6
CBI

CBI EU 2013/36/EU
EU NO 575/2013

17,087,153 2023
16,399,659

19.

2024

2024 12 31

20.
2024 12 31 2023
21.
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDAT CAT

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

2024 2023

Maotes £ €
Assels
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents B 33,283,581 44,086, 186
Trade and other receivables 9 20,720,991 22,026,305
Loans and borrowings 10 Q000,000 -
Total current assets 72,013,572 665,112,491
Mon-current assets
Tangible fixed assets 11 52,164 76,181
Intangible assels 12 525,272 B70,742
Ceoodwill 13 2,825,153 2825153
Total non-current assets 3A02,589 3772076
Tokal assets 75,416,161 69,854,567
Equity and hiabilities
Equity
Share capital 14 4.490,006 4. 490,006
Share premium 14.1 17,918,365 17,918, 365
Capital contribution 14.2 3,600,000 3,601,000
Retained carnings 15 31,816,065 23,528,080
Mher reserves 15 - 186,650
Total equity 57,825,343 49,723,105
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 17,500 815 200,161,462
Total current liabilities 17,590,818 20,161,462
Total liabilities 17,590,815 20,161,462
Total equity and liabilities 75,416,161 69,884,567

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Rigad bry: S
rﬁ S Jawes Al
Director Director
Date: 29 Apnil 2025 Date: 29 April 2025

The accompenying moles are an integral part of Hrese finamcial statements.
12
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
MNotes £ €
Continuing operations:
Revenue 3 85,636,558 70,149,292
Cost of sales 5 (26,514,745)  (29,354,208)
Gross profit 62,121,813 40,795,084
Administrative expenses 5 (39,300,609)  {32,819,769)
Operating profit 22821114 7975315
Finance income & 6hd, 135 B578
Other income 5 977,329 -
Profit before income tax 24,462,578 7,983,893
Income tax 7 (1,173,.650) (69),751)
Profit for the financial year 23,288,585 7,293,142
Total comprehensive income for the financial year 23,258,885 7,293,142
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent 23,283,858 7,293,142

Al results have boen generated by continuing operations.

The accompanying moles are an fntegral part of these finamrcial statements.

11
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Diocusign Ervaiops ID; 406ETBAS-E2I0-4345-BR0F CAF EASDAIOST

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Share Share Capital Retained Other
capital premium  contributions carmings TESETVES Total
£ £ € 3 € €
As at 1 January 2023 4,490,002 - 3,600,000 16,234,938 - 24,324,940
Profit for the financial year - - - T.H3,142 - T.H3,142
lssue of share capital 4 17,918,364 . = . 17,918,373
- - - 186,650 186,650

Unrealised currency gain

4,450,006 17,518 3659 3,600,000 23,528,080 186,650 48,723,105

As at 31 December 2023

- . 2328888 . 23288888
- < (15,000,000} < (15,000,000}
. . - {1B6,65(1) {186,65(0)

Prodit for Hhe financial year
tayment of dividends
Unrealised currency gainloss

As at 31 December 2024 4,490,006 17,918,369 3,600,000 31,616,968 - 57,825,343

The weconpunrying notes are an integr park of these fmancin! stitements
13
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Amortisation

Depreciation - owned assets

Finance income

Unrealised currency (loss)/gain

Met cash flows generated by operating activities
Change in operating assets and liabilitics:
Movement in frade and other receivables
Mowement in trade and other payables

Met cash generated by in operations
Income bax paid

Met cash generated by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Mowvement in incremental costs o new contracts
Interest received

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Purchase of Goodwill

Purchase of intangible assets

Movement in Loans and Bomrowings

Met cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of share premium

Dividends paid

Proceeds from issue of share capital

Met cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the financial year

2024 2023
Motes [3 3
24,462,578 7083803
0,972 273719
245,988 7811
(664,135) (8,578)
(186,650) 186,650
23,948,643 8,443,495
(7.368038)  (1,194,452)
(2,570,645) 70028, 370
14,010,000 14,277,383
(L514.001)  (2.195.115)
12,496,009 12,082,268
45.R48 {282,805)
i, 135 £,578
{12,597} (83,390
- (2,825,153)
- (9, 750)
(9, M0, 006N -
18,298,614) 13,272,5500
= 17,918,368
(15,000,000} -
- 4
{15,000,0000 17,918,373
(10,802,605) 26,728,091
44,0186, 156 17,358,005
8 33,283,581 44,066,186

The accompenying moles are an integral part of Hrese finamcial statements.

14
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

1. STATUTORY INFORMATION

Wavstone Management Company (IE) Limited (the "Company™) is a company limited by shares
incorporated and domiciled in Ireland. The Company is tax resident in Ireland and the registered numbser
and registered address can be found on the Company Information page.

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES
21 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 have been
prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards
{or TTFRS™).

22 Basis of preparation

The princpal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below.
The policies have been consistently applied to the financial year presented and the prior financial year,
unless otherwise stated.

These finandal statements have been prepared in accordance with International Finandal Reporting
Standards, International Acoounting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(LASH) as adopled by the European Union {("IFRSs7) and with those parts of the Companies Act 2004
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The finandial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except for certain fimandial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts
of fair values at the end of cach reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below,

The financial statements are presented in Euro (€) . which is the Company’s functional currency and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Amsunts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest Euro (€).
23 Changes in accounting policies
a MNew standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2024

In the current fimandal year, the Company has applied the below amendments o IFRS Standards and
Interpretations that are effective for an annual period that begins on or after 1 January 2024, Their
adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these
financial statements.

The following amendments had no material impact on the Company's financial stafements.

+ 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-Current and Mon-Current Liabilities with Covenants (effective for annual  peniods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024).
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUETD)
13 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
a Mew standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2024 (continued)

+ IFRS 7 Finandal Instruments: Disclosures - Supplier Finance Arramgements (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024).

by Mew standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective

At the dabe of approval of these fimandal statements, several new, but not vet effective, standards and
amendments o existing standards, and  Interpretations have been published by the International
Accounting Standards Board ("IASE™). Mone of these standards or amendments to existing standards
hawe been adopted early by the Company.

The Directors anticipate that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted for the first period beginning
on or after the effective date of the pronounoement.

Standard Title of Standard or Interpretation Effective date

Amendments o [AS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025

Amendments:  IFRS 9 and | Classification and  Measurement of | 1 January 2026

IFRS 7 Finanaal Instruments

Mew Standard: IFRS 18 Presentation  and  Disclosure  in| 1 January 2027
Fimangial Statements

For all the stanclards and amendments listed above, the Directors do not expect any material impact.
24 Significant judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management b0 make udgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these judgements, estimates and
assumplions.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including reasomable expectation of current period’s estimates. This note provides a summarny of
the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity. Detailed information about each of
these estimates and judgements is included in other notes,

The Directors have considered where significant judgement and key estimates are included in the
financial statements and these include the following:
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 Significant judgements and estimates (continued)

*  Incremental cost to new contracts - The deferred contract costs relate to capitalised
commissions paid to staff, which the Company expects to recover over the life of the asset.
Dhirectors have estimated that 5 vears is an appropriate period of amortisation. Where cortain
contracts have a definite useful life, the incremental oosts have been amortised over the
appropriate life of the contract.

25 Goodwill

Coodwill represents the excess of consideration paid over the fair value of net tangible and intangible
assets acquired in business acquisitions and related costs of acquisition. Goodwill s subject to annual
impairment tests,

Coodwill is measured as the estimated future economic benefits which will be generated byv an
acquisition in the future, Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in drcumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carryving
armount of goodwill relating to the entity sold,

26 Revenue recognition

Revenue consists of management fees and set-up fees carned in respect of the Company acting as an
ATFM and UCITS Management Cnmrmn:,.l to imvestment funds, bank interest and certain sundr:y income,
which is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the financial
vear when it is carned, Bevenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Company, and the amount of the revenue can be reliably measured.

Management fees are calculated based on a percentage of a fund’s Net Asset Value (or "NAVT), subject to
a i agreed fee,

Professional service foes
Professional services fees, such as EMIR, FATCA, Payroll, VAT, Company Secretarial and MLEO
support, are recorded by reference o the period of the service, Amounts camed but not yet billed are
recorded as acorued income, The Company primarily earns fixed annual fees or fised rate fees relating to
professional services.

The Company accounts for contracts with customers that fall within the scope of IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers only, when all of the following crteria are mek:

(1) Identifyving the contract with a customer.
(2) ldentifving the performance obligations,
(3) Determining the transaction price,
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
26 Revenue recognition (continued)
(4)  Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations.
(5) Becognising revenue whenfas performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

The amount of revenue that the Company recognises is measured based on the consideration specified in
contracts with customers. These contracts involve a series of services that are substantially the same and
the benefit of each service is received and consumed immediately. These contracts therefore consist of a
single performance obligation for which control is transferred over fime and revenue is reoognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of cach contract, This method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer
of goods or services becawse the work required does not vary significantly from month-to-month.

FPerformance obligations aend revertie Fecogrrition palicies
These services are recognised over the period for which they are provided. The revenue is accrued until
client invodces are issued. Bevenue billed but not vet considered carned is recorded as deferred revenue.

27  Expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. Expenditure incurred in the provision of services to
other group companies is recorded on a gross basis in accordance with the contractual arrangements in
place.

Included in cost of sales are costs paid by the Company in respect of platform costs paid in respect of
client funds. These costs of sales are recovered through the fees charged as per revenue in Mole 3.

8 Employee benefit costs

The Cmupan}-' operates a defined contribution pension scheme. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Company pays fised conbribubions into a separate enbity and does not have any
legal or constructive obligations if the pension plan does not hold sufficient assets o pay all employees
the benefits relating fo employee service in the current and prior financial years. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Company. Contributions payable to the Company's pension schemse
are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the period which they
relabe to.

Other long-term employee benefits pertain to equity held.
29 Taxation

Current taxes are based on the results shown in the financial statements and are calculated acoording to
local tax rules, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted by the Statement of Financial Position
date,
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
29 Taxation (continued)

Deterred tax is provided on timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the Statement of
Financial Positon date where transachions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the
furbure or a right to pay less tax in the future have ocourred at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Dreferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply in the years in
which the iming differences are expected to reverse based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date. The Company has not adopted a
policy of discounting deferred tax assel and liabilities.

A deferred tax asset 15 regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all
available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits
from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

210 Foreign currencies

Assets ang liabilities in foreign currencies are ranslated into Euro at the rates of exchange ruling at the
Statement of Finandal Position date, Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Euro with an
appropriate rate of exchange ruling at the date of transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are franslated at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of
the transaction. Mon-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are franslated
using the exchange rates al the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences are faken
into account in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.,

211 Share based payments

Long=termy employee benefits pertaining to equity held typically refer o compensation or rewards
granted o employees in the form of equity-based instruments that vest over an extended period. These
benefits are designed fo incentivise and retain emplovees for the long term, aligning, their interests with
the Company’s sucoess. Equily-based compensation can come in various forms, such as stock oplions,
restricted stock units (RSUs), or emploves stock purchase plans (ESPPs).

The fair value of equity-based instruments is recognised as an employee benefils expense, with a
corresponding, increase in equity. The total expense is recognised over the vesting, period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting, conditions are 1o be satisfied. Ar the end of each period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected o vest based on the non-market
vesting and service conditions, b recgonises the impact of the revision o orginal cstimates, if any, in
profit or loss, with a comesponding adjustment o equity.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments

Recognition
Financial assets and financial habalities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual prowisions of the financial instrument.

Purchases or sales of finandal assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recogniced on the trade date, e,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Iritial measureiment

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assefs and finandial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deduded from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or finandal liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recogniscd immediately in the profit or boss,

Fimancial pssets - amortised cost
The Company's finandal assets met the following conditions and are classified into the amortised oost
category if:
*  They are held within a business madel whose objective is to hold the finangial assets and
collect its contractual cash flows.

*  The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the princ pal amount outstanding,

The financial assets held by the Company recognised at amorbised cost consist of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, ofher receivables, accrued income, amounts owed by group undertakings
and loans and borrowings. All financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction
cosls,

Cash represents cash at bank and deposits held on demand with financial institutions. Cash equivalents
represent short-term, highly-liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash.

In the presentation of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash also includes bank overdrafts. Any such
overdrafts are shown within borrowings under ‘current liabilities’ on the Statement of Finandal Position.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets - amortised cost (contintied)

After initial recognition, these are measured at amorbised cost using the effective inferest method.
Discounting, is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. All revenue and expenses relating to
financial assets are recognised in profit or loss in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets are not redassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting, period following the change in the business model.

Financial assets are measwred af fair valne trongh obher comprelensive incone if the belon condition s mef:
= The finandal asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
eollecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assels.

*  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on spedfied dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

The Company does not currently hold any assets at fair value through other comprehensive inoomie.

Financial assels - business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the obpective of the business model inowhich a financial asset 15
held because this best reflects the way the business 15 managed, and information s provided to
management.

The information considerad indudes:
*  The stated policies and objectives and the operation of those polidies in practice.

+  The risks thal affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed.

*  How managers of the business are compensabed - eg. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected.

*  Transfors of financial assets to third partics in transactions  that do not qualify for
derecognition are nob considered sales for this purpose. consistent with the Company’s
continuing recognition of the assets,
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments (continued)

Imypairment of fianciel nesets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses ("ECLs") on iinancial asscts measwared
at amortised cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal o lifetime ECLs, except
for financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default ocourring over the expected life of the
fimancial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, which are measured at
12-month ECLs,

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available withowt undue cost or effort.

This indudes both quantitative and qualifative information and amalysis, based on the Company's
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
a specified amount of days past due. The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

*  The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company i full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held).

+  The financial asset is more than 363 days past due.

Lifietime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument,

12-momth ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorder period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
ioeaths).

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether finandal assets carried at amortised cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the fnancial asset have ocourred.

Evidence that a finandal asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
+  Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,
+ A breach of confract such as a default or being more than 1580 days past due.
= The restructuring of a loan or advance that is out of the normal practice.

+ It is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptoy or other financial reorganisation.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments (continued)

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financal asset is witten off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For customers, the
Company has a policy of assessing all balances greater than 120 days.

Fircial lalrilities - anortized cost

The Company's financial liabilities include frade pavables, other payables and accrued expenses.
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction
costs. Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. All interest-related charges are reported in profit or loss in the Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income,

Financial liabilities - fair value tirongh profil or loss

A financial liability is classified as at fair value through the profit or loss if it is cassified as
held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at
fair value through the profit or loss are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, induding any
interest expense, are recognised in the profit or loss. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
lnsses are recognised in the profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the
[profit or loss,

Derecognition of finamgial assets amd fimarecial labilifies
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights o the cash flows from the
financial assel exping, or it transfers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in a ransaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assct are ransferred or in
which the Company neither transfors nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does nob retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position but retains cither all, or substantially all, of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In
these cases, the transferred assets are not denccognised.

The Company derecognises a financial hability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognises a finanaal liability when its terms are modified and
the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new finandal liabdlity
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognibion of a fimancial liability, the difference between the carrving amouant extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transforred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in the
profit or loss,
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments (continued)

MNon-fieancial instrinments

At cach reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

213 Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at oost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided at the
following annual rates in order to write off the cost less estimated residual value of cach asset over ils
estimated usceful life;

Fixtures & fittings - straight line over 5 vears

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate,

The carrying values of are reviewed annually for impairment in periods if events or changes in
arcumskanoes indicate the carrying value may mot be recoverable,

The gains and loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrving amount of property and equipment, and is recognized net
within profit or loss,

214  Intangible assets

[ntangible assets are capitalised and amortised over their estimated  useful economic lives on a
straight-line basis:

Incremental costs o new contracts - straight line over 5 vears
Capatalised software = straight line over 3 vears

Maintenance costs relating o computer software programs are expensed to the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income when incurred. Development expenditure represents internally
generated costs incurred on development activities. These costs have been capitalised in accordance with
the requirements of TAS 38 Intangible Assets.

In line with the requirements of IFES 15 Kevenue from Contracts with Customers, incremental
recoverable expenses relating to contracks with customers are capitalised and amortised over the expecied
life of the contract when these expenses are expected 1o be reoovered. Management estimates the
expected life of the contract, Where certain contracts have a definite usceful life, the incremental costs have
been amortised over the appropriate life of the contract,
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Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUETD)
215  Equity and reserves

All capital payments are booked to equity within share capital or share premium, Reserves consist of
accumulabed profit or loss as taken from the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income since date of incorporation.

Ordinary Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable o the issue of now
ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the prooeeds,

The share premium account includes the premium on issue of ordinary shares, net of any issue oosts.

Retained earnings represents accumulated comprehensive income/(loss) for the financial vear and prior
financial periods.

216 Impairment of assets, other than financial instruments

At the end of each financial vear, the Company conducts an impairment review of all ils assets and
assesses whether there is any indication that the recoverable amount of an asset is less than it carrying
amount, IF any such indication exists, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount, resulting in an impairment loss. Impairment losses are recognised immediately in the Statement

of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Whoere the droumstances causing an impairment of an asset, other than goodwill, no longer apply, then
the impairment is reversed through the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. An
impairmeent loss recognised fnr!.;nndwill 15 nob reversed in subsequent p-l:ri::rd.-'..

The recoverable amount of tangible fixed assets, goodwall and other intangible fixed assets is the higher
of the fair value less cost to sell, of the asset and its value in use. The value in use of these assets is the
present value of the cash flows expected to be derived from those assets. This is determined by reference
to the present value of the future cash flows of the Company which is considered by the Directors to be a
single cash generating unit.
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Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
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2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
217  Provisions, contingent liabilities and assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the obligation will be required to be settled, and a reliable cstimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are discounted when the tinwe
value of money is material,

Contingent liabilitics are potential obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurmence or non-eocurmence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the finandal statements. bul
are disdlosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote,
Contingent liabdlities are assessed continually to determine whether an outflow of resources embodying
coonomic benefits has become probable. If it becomes probable that an owtfloww of future economic
benefits will be required, a provision is recognised, if a reliable estimate is available, in the financial
statements of the period in which the change in probability oocurs.

If the Company has provided for a provision or contingent liability or asset, management estimate the
fair value, using the information made available to them, and probable expedted cash flow advised to
them by consulted professionals.,

218 Going concerm

The Directors are nol aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, Therefore, the financial stabements continue o be
prepared on a going concern basis,
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

3 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
31 Segmental reporting

The breakdown of the Company revenue streams is s follows:

2024 2023
€ €
Management and Helated fees 88,636,558 70,149,292

The Company is authorised and regulated as an AIFM and UCITS Management Company to investment
funds, providing fund management and other adtivities. Turnover comprises management fees and
seb-up fees, Management fees are calculated based on a percentage of a fund's MNet Asset Value {or
“NAV"Y, sulbgect boa minimuom agreed foe.

An analysis of revenue from contracts with customers by geographical market is given below:

2024 2023
£ €
Cayman Islands 1,517,362 1,414,589
France 1,353,311 824,157
Luxembourg 584777 4 171,205
Republic of Ireland 79,044,081 62,773,445
Spain 46,645 265,802
Switzerland 207 .
United Kingdom 167,225

86,036,555 70,149,292

7
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

4, EMPLOYEES AND DINRECTORS
4.1 Staff costs

Staff costs during the financial year comprise:

2024 2023

13 €

Wages and salanies 13,531,552 8,580 905
Social security costs 1,519, 9K 927 918
Pension oosts 1,015,322 648,979
326,576 190,013

Benefits
16,393,440 10,362,905

4.2 Directors” remuneration

Drirectors’ remuneration during the fimamcial VEAr Comprise:

024 2023
€ €

Drirectors’ remuneration
Directors’ emol uments B86,624 530,875
Directors’ pension contributions 45437 25,750
Directors’ benefits 3,760 4114
Diirectors’ socal security costs 03,947 28,907
L0, 765 545,046

Remuneration of Directors is disclosed above. Other than noted above, no expenses, share options or
other remuneration was paid or awarded to the Directors during the finandal year. The amounts
outstanding to Directors as at 31 December 2024 was €37,500 (2023: €91,875).

43 Number of employees
The average number of emplovess (including executive Directors) during the finandal year was as
followws:
2024 023
147 S

Management and staff
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

5 PROFIT/LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

The profit before income tax is stated after charging/{orediting):

Administrative expenses
Aundilor’s remieration

For services as auditor

For taxation compliance
Amortisation

Bad debt

Deprecation - owned assets
Foreign exchange (gam)/loss
Legal and professional
Recharges from group companies
Staff costs (Mobe 4.1)

Director costs (Mote 4.2)
Other expenses
Total administeative expenses

Cost of sales

Directors’ fees for the Funds managed by the Company

Audit and accounting fees for the Funds managed by the Company

Other cost of sales
Total cost of sales

2024 2023

€ €

40,000 53,187

- 9847

9,812 73,719
275,726 59,507
245,088 7E1
(303,176} 304,741
1,629,300 536,893
16,784, 165 17,271,434
16,393,440 10,362,905
1,004, 768 595, 646
3,139,576 3,254,080
349,300,659 32,819,770
742,847 51, Bt
2.048,618 1,850,994
23,723,280 26,942 363
26,514,745 29,354,207

Other cost of sales constitutes costs paid by the Company in respect of the Waystone platform funds
(umbrella funds that are managed by Waystone, but which host multiple investment managers and
investment advisors on individual sub-funds) and certam dient funds (whene the Company receives a
management fee and pays cerfain expenses in respect of the client out of the management fee). These
oosts of sales are recovered through the fees charged as per turmover in Note 3 above,

Orther income includes insurance proceeds received as compensation for legal expenses incurred, relating
to proceedings that were served on the Company by a conbractual counterparty. Other income for the

financial vear was €977,329 (2023 €Nil) . See Note 2.

29
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

&, FINANCE INCOME ANTY COST

2024 2023
€ €

Finance ncome:
Deposit account interest 15,842 8578
Interest income on cash equivalents 638, Y04 -
Interest income on intercompany loans 6,329 -
Met finance incomef{cost) Bid, 135 8,578

30
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

7. INCOME TAX

7.1 Analysis of tax charge

Current tax:
Income fax current financial year

Total tax charge

7.2 Factors affecting the tax expense

2024 2023

€ €
1,173,690 590,751
1,173,690 690,751

The tax assessed for the financial vear is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the Republic of

[reland. The difference is explained below:

Profit before income tax taxable at 12.5% (023 12.5%)
Profit before inconie tax table at 25% (2023: 25%)
Profit for the financial year

Profit multiplied by the standard rate of

corporation tx in the Republic of Ireland of 12.5% (2023: 12.5%)

Profit before tax multiplied by 25% (2023: 25%:)

Effect of:

Other tax effects, including Group loss relief
(Owverpunder-provision in prior finandal year
Income tax expense

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank
Cash equivalents

2024 2023

€ €
22821114 7975315
6,135 §578
23,485,249 7083893
2,852,630 005, 914
166,034 2,145
308,673 04, (150
(1,155,673) -
(689, 310) {3008, 308)
1,173,650 690,751
2024 2023

€ £
0,308,071 31,568,430
12,974,510 12,517,747
33,283,581 44,066,156

Please view Mote 18 disclosing the Company's CBI minimum capital requirements.

3l
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

&, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The credit risk on cash transactions is mitigated by transacting, with counterparties that are regulated
enfities subject to prudential supervision, or with high oredit ratings assigned by international credit
rating agencies. The credit rating, for 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are as follows:

2024 023
Cash held at Allied Irish Bank A2 Al
Cash held at Bank of Ireland A3 Al
Cash held at HSBC Aad Aad
9, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2024 2023

€ €

Current:
Trade receivables® 6,500,407 6,935,025
Amounts owed by group undertakings 3,508,081 1,548,537
Other receivables 1,972,314 386,959
Income fax receivable 511,742 171,431
VAT 1,026,312 164,971
Acorued income 15,025, 09 12,137,930
Prepayments 425,046 6E5,453

29,729,991 22,026,305

* Trade receivables is net of provision for bad debts amounting to (E329,650) (2023: €39,507)
Amounts owed by group companies are interest free, unseoured and pavable on demand,
10, FINANCIAL ASSETS - BORROWINGS AND LOANS

Company loans and borrowings consist of:

2024 2023
£ €

Current:
Intercompany loans Q000,000 -
4,000, (00 -

Loan is subject bo 3.5% interest per annum, is unsecured and payable on demand.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

11. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fixtures
and
fittings Total
£ €
Cost
Asat 1 January 2024 05,563 95,803
Additions 12, 597 12,597
As at 31 December 2024 108,460 108,460
Depreciation
As al 1 January 2024 19,682 19,682
Charge for the financial vear 3,014 o614
As at 31 December 2024 56,296 56,296
Net book value
As at 31 December 2024 52,164 32,164
Fixtures
ang
fithings Total
13 €
Cost
Asat 1 January 2023 12,472 12472
Additions H3,.391 #3301
As at 31 December 2023 95,863 95,863
Depreciation
Asat 1 January 2023 11,871 11,871
Charge for the financial vear 7A11 7811
As at 31 December 2023 19,652 19,682
Net book value
As at 31 December 2023 76,181 Th181

33
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

12, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Incremental
Capitalised costs to new
software contracts Total
€ £ €
Cost
Asat 1 January 2024 29,750 1,368,293 1438073
Additions [ (Dispozals) = (49 538) (49, 545)
As at 31 December 2024 849,760 1,318,445 1,408,225
Amortisation
Asalb 1 January 2024 9,015 57H 316 587,331
Charge for the financial year 47,084 248,538 295,622
As at 31 December 2024 56,0199 826,854 352,953
Net book value
Asg at 31 December 2024 33,681 491,591 525272
Incremental
Capitalised  costs o new
software contracts Total
3 € €
Cost
As at 1 January 2023 859,750 1,085, 488 1,175,268
Additions [ (Disposals) - 252 805 282 805
As at 31 December 2023 59,750 1,368,293 1458073
Amortisation
Asat 1 January 2023 - EIENO 33611
Charge for the financial vear 9,015 264,705 273,720
Asg at 31 December 2023 9,015 578,316 587331
Net book value
As at 31 December 2023 80,765 TR9,977 870,742

The incremental cost b new contracts related to capitalised commissions paid to business development
staff.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

13 GOODWILL

Per the Business Transfer Agreement (BTAT) executed on 19 April 2023, certain dients of Link Fund
Manager Solutions (1E) Limited ("LFMSIL™) novated to the Company on % October 2023 by way of a
Business Transfer Agreement ("BTA) and Central Bank of Ireland ("CBI™) Change of Service Provider.
The Company purchased the assumed assets and liabilities of LEMSIL. As at 31 December 2024, the
Goodwill has a value of €2,525,153 (2023; €2,825,153).

14. SHARE CAPITAL
MNumber of MNumber of Number of

shares shares shares fully MNominal 2024 2023
authorised issued paid value € €
Ordinary 100,000,000 4,490,006 4,490,006 1 o4, 4500, 006 4,40, 006

141 Share premium

Share premium represents the excess price of the issued shares over their par value. Share premium as at
31 December 2024 is €17, 918,369 (2023: €17 918,369).

142 Capital contribution

The Capital contribution is additional capital provided by the Parent Company Clifton Directors Limited.
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Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

15. RESERVES

Asat] January 2024
Unrealised currency gain/loss
Profit fior the financial year
Divicend

As at 31 December 2024

Asat 1 January 2023
Unrealised currency gain/loss
Profit for the financial vear
As at 31 December 2023

Reserves Deseription and purpose
Retained carnings

clsewhere,
Other reserves

16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current:

Trade payables

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Other pavables

Social security and other taxes
Accrued expenses

Retained Other
earnings TESETVES Total
3 £ €
23,528,080 186,650 23,714,730
. (186,650 {186,650)
23,288,888 - 23,285, 8RR
{ 15,000,000 - (15,000,000
31,816,968 - 31,816,968
16,234,938 - 16,234,938
- 186,650 186,650
7,293,142 - 7,293,142
23,528,080 186,650 23,714,730

All other net gainsflosses and  transactions with owners not  recognised

Other reserves that don't fit into retained earnings or translation reserves.

2024 2023

£ L3
2095,493 M), 535%
4,689,925 5,043,387
1.737.517 -
434,006 492,327
B.633,844 13,825,209
17,55, 818 20,161,462

Amounts owed to Group companies ane interest free, unsecured and payable on demand.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has related party relationships with its shareholders, Directors and other key management
personnel, and related undertakings of the Waystone group.

Drirectors” remuneration and transactions are disclosed in Note 4. The Directors’ remuneration discosed
in Mote 4 represents the total compensation paid to key management personnel.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

During the financial yvear, the Company entered into the following transactions with fellme group

COMpRnies:
Administrative
Revenue expenses Amounts
financial financial owed by/
Mature of year ended  year ended (owed o)
Intercompany 2024 2024 2024
Transaction 3 £ €
‘Wavstone (Ireland) Limited Net Beceivable - (8,054) 18,868
Wavstone Asset Management (Cayman) Lid — Receivable 168,729 - 168,729
Wavstone C.apital Solutions (LB Limited MNet I’;ly;lhlc - (1,978,157} (137,473)
Wavstone Centralised Services (IE) Limited  Net Receivable - (5,278,287} 1273576
Wavstone Compliance Solutions (IE) Limited  MNet Payable 512 (56,580) (546, 0068)
Wavstone Compliance Solutions (LK)
Limited Net Payable 653 {7,759} (14,077}
Waystone Compliance Solutions (US) Lid Met Payable - - (23,804)
Waystone Compliance Solulions (Middle
East) Ltd Met Payable . (12,289) (29,5400
Waystone Corporate Services (IE) Limited Met Payable - (121,743) (143,729
Waystone Services (Lux) Sarl Receivable a3 - a3
Waystone Fund Services (Switeerland) 5.4 Net Receivable 08 {642 GG 142
Waystone Fund Administrators (1E) Limited Payable - (108,563) (B24,597)
Waystone Governance (UK) Limited Net Beoeivable 96 (1,046.552) 1,230,113
Waystone Governance (USA) Ine Expense - (26,075) -
Waystone Investment Management {IE)
Limnited Net Payable 17871 (LI38150)  {1,206,219)
Wavstone Management (UK) Limited Net Payable 105,950 (131,202) (112,17%)
Waystone Management Company (Lux) Sarl  Net Payable 103,730 (1,444,959) (7R3, 5000
Waystone Services (Lux) SA Receivable 39,858 - 39,858
Sigma Irish Topeo Limited Payable . - {1540, B0t
Sigma Irish Acquico Limited Met Payable . (4780799 (1,171,272)
Sigma Irish Acquice Linited Loan - - EALLARENL
Wavstone Administration Solutions (Lux)5A  Receivable - - 79,550
Wavstone Administration Solutions (US) Inc Payable . {1,639) {1,434)
Fing BidCo Limited Receivable . - BE1,593
Fing MidCao Limited Receivable . - 10,452
King DebtCo Limited Reoeivable - - 5
King TopCo Limited Payable - - (14,47%)
KB Associates Consulting Lid Payable - - (20,000

a7
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Administrative
Revenue EXpEnses Amounts
financial financial owed by/
yearended  year ended (owed to)
Nature of 2023 2023 023
Transactions € £ €
Wavstone (Ireland) Limited Met Receivable - (723,862) 28,755
Waystone Capital Solutions (LK) Limited Met Payable . (2,360,500} {182,756)
‘Wavstone Centralised Services (IE) Limited Met Payable - (6,645508)  (2,730,726)
Wavstone Compliance Solutions (LK)
Limited Net Fayable - (8,422) (5,422}
Wavstone Compliance Solutions (US) Lid Met Payable - (1,623} (2,065)
Waystone Compliance Solutions (Middle
East) Ltd Met Payable . - (18,037)
Wavstone Corporate Services (IE) Limited  MNet Receivable - [42961) 233
Waystone Services (Lux) Sarl Met Receivable - (1,192} 10,266
Waystone Fund Services (Switzerland) 5.A Expenses - (383,030 -
Waystone Fund Administrators (1E) Limited  Net Beceivable . (3,073) 341,866
Waystone Governance (UK) Limited Revenug/Expenses 163,857 (1,338.856) -
Waystone Investment Management {IE)
Limited Net Payable . (727,502) {459, 985)
Waystone Management (LK) Limited Expenses - (105, 10%) -
Waystone Management Company (Lux) Sarl  Net Payable . - (210,961)
Sigma lrish Acquico Limited Met Payable . - (210,576)
Waystone Administrabion Solutions (Lux) 54 Expenses - (3.594.896) -
King BidCo Limited Met Beceivable - - 332,028
King MidCo Limited Met Receivable = - 10,452
King DebtCo Limited Met Beorivable - - 2023
Fing TopCo Limited Met Payable - - (11,403)
KB Associabes Consulting Lid Met Payable . - {50, 288
Waystone Holdings {Lux) Sarl Expenses - (371.319) -

Administration cxpenses relating to servioes provided by other companies are disclosed in Mote 5. Please
also refer to Mote 16 for amounts payable to group companies, The Company Secretary held shares in
other Group companies of the wider Waystone Group at 31 December 2024
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

18, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS
181  Financial risk management

The Directors have overall responsibility for the determination of the Company's risk management
obpechives and policies and, whilst retaming ulbmate responsibility for them, it has delegated  the
authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives
and policies o the Company's finance function.

The Company has exposure to the following risks:

+ Credit risk:

+ Liquidity risk;

* Market risk;

+ Foreign exchange nsk;
& [nterest rate risk and

+ Capital management risk.
1511 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the ﬂtmpany if a customer or counterparty o a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company is mainly exposed to oredit risk from
credit sales. [t is Company policy, to assess the oredit nisk of new customers before entering into contracts,

The Company has credit risk exposure o banks and other affiliates arising from funds deposited with
these institutions. The Company mitigate the risk to its funds by ensuring that counterparties are well
capitalised institutions,

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum coredit exposure. The maximum
exposure to oredit risk at the reporting date was:

2024 2023

£ €

Cash and cash equivalents 13,283,581 44,086,156

Trade receivables 6,901 407 6,935,025

Amounts owed by group undertakings 3,868,051 1,548,537

Ohher receivables 3510368 719,360

Accrued income 15,025, 06 12,137 950
Loans and borrowings 4,000,000

71,588,526 65,427,038
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

18, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (CONTINUED)
181  Financial risk management (continued)
1811 Credit risk (continued)

The Company manages credit risk in respect of fees receivable from clients by only delivering servioes to
reputable and financially stable clients. Management has reviewed the fee receivable balance and
estimated an appropriate expected credit loss balanoe that reflects historical, current and forward-looking
information reasonably expected to be known at the date these fimancial statements were authorized.

2024 2023

£ €

Trade receivables, gross 7,231,057 540, 532
Bad debt provision (329,650 (549,507)
Trade receivables, net 6,901,407 6,935,025

15.1.2 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk arises from the Company management of working capital. It is the risk that the Company
will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company policy is to
ensure that it will always have sufficient cash fo allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due.

The Company’s liquidity position is monitored regulacly by management and is reviewed on a periodic
basis by the Board.

As at 31 December 2024, the anbiapated undiscounted cash flows amounting to €17, 590817 are payable
les than one vear (2023 €20,161,462).

18,13 Market risk

The Company does not hold any direct interests in underlying funds under management on its Statement
of Finandal Position and none of the Compamny’s current assels are materially directly affected by
financial markets. Market volatility since the finandial year end has not had any material impact on the
Company to date.

1814 Foreign exchange risk

The Company holds a significant amount of its net assets in Euro but has reoeivables and deposits in
United States (or "US") Dollars and Great British Pounds (or "GEM). The forcign exchange risk on these
LS Dollar balances is kept to a minimum through regular conversions and balancing holdings in Euro
equivalent amounts, This serves to minimise the matenal foreign exchange risks. Upon review,

management have determined that there are no material reccivable balances exposed o foreign exchange
risk at the financial year end and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been performed,

40
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

18, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (CONTINUED)
181  Financial risk management (continued)
1815 Interest rabe risk

The Company is not exposed lo significant interest rate risk and management does not consider interest
rate risk to be a significant risk of the Company.

18.1.6 Capital risk management

The Company is subject to externally imposed mininum capital requirements by the CEI and these are
reviewed on a monthly basis by the senior management within the Company and the Board. The
Company’s regulatory capital requirements are considered in the budgeting process as per regulatory
puidance.

The Company's CELminimum capital requirements are as prescribed under the EL Capatal Requirements
Drirective (Directive M 3/36/EL) and regulation (EU) NO 5752013 on prudential requirements for credit
institutions and investments firsts (logether, the "Capital Requirements™). The Company is required to
hold the minimum level of capilal as sel oul in legislation at all times and is required o submil capital
returns o the Central bank on a periodic basis, For the purpose of this requirement the capital required is
held via cash and cash equivalents, As at the end of the financial vear the Central Bank mininum capital
requirements was €17, 087,153 (2023: €16, 399 639).

The Company is mecting its objective for managing capital through holding cash on deposit and cash and
cash equivalents above the minimum capital regquirement.,

14, CONTINGEMNCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Company has regulatory, confractual, and other duties and obligations arising in the ordinary course
of its business. In its capacity as General Partner to investment limited partmerships (the "Partnerships”),
the Company is liable for the debts and obligations of the Partnerships where the Partnerships have
insufficient property to meet its debts and obligations. These are in the nature of contingent liabilities.
Such liabilities may or may not be covered by the Company’s professional indemnity insurance,

In August 2024, proceedings were served on the Company by a conlractual counterparty. Waystone
Management Company (IE) Limited has delivered a full and robust defence to these proceedings and
docs not consider it probalile that it will result i an outflow of economic resources. As at 31 December
2024, no provisions have been made in these financial statements. Any possible obligation (if any) is
uncertain and cannot be measured with sufficient reliabilitv. In addition, any amount which could arise
as aresult of this contingent liability would be reduced by the insurance cover in plage.

0. CAPMITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company had o material capital commitments as at 31 December 2024 (2023: €Nil).

41
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 4CEETEAS-B22D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

21. INDEMNIFICATIONS

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into confracts that confain a variety of
representations, warranties and obligations which provide general indemnifications. The Company’s
maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown as this would involve future claims that may
be made against the Company that have not yet ocourred. However, based on experience, the Company
exapects the nisk of loss to be remote and has professional indemnity insurance in place to mitigate these
risks. Liabilities incurred may or may not be covered by the Company's professional indemmity
INSUranog.

22, ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The immediate Parent Company of the Company, as at 31 December 2024 was Clifton Directors Limited,
which is a company incorporated in 2007 in Ireland. Clifton Directors Limited held 106006 of the share
capital of the Company, On 1 January 2025, as per Part 9 of the Companies Act 2004, Clifton Dhirectors
Limited merged with King Topoo Limibed,

The ultimate parent undertaking is Sigma Irish Topoo Limited, the parent company of the Waystone
Group, The registered address is 4th Floor, 35 Shelbourne Boad, Dublin 4, Treland, There is no ultimate
confrolling party.

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Sigma Inish
Topoo Limited, which is a company incorporated in Ireland in 2021, Al companics ultimately owned by
Sigma Irish Topoo Limited are collectively known to be a subsidiary of the Waystone Group.

Accounts for these entities can be olained from Companies Registration Office Ireland.
23, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

[In preparing these financial statements, the Directors have evaluated and disclosed all material
subsequent events up to 29 April 2025, which is the date that the financial statements were available to be
issued and are not aware of any other subsequent events, other than the disclosure below, which would
require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

Effective 31 March 2025, Rachel Wheeler resigned as non-executive director and  Andrea Oman was
appointed as non-execubive director of the Company.

The Directors note the recent volatility in financial markets caused by the trade tariffs announced by the
United States of America and whilst any fall in markets will negatively impact the Company’s assels
under management and  therefore revenue, the Dhrectors remamn sabisfied i the commeraal and
operational resilienoe of the Company. As with all macrocoonomic events the Dhrectors remam active in
appraising the risks and opportunitics they bring,.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

4, APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements were approved on 29 April 2025
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Brown Brothers Harriman Trustee Services lreland Limited

2025 6,750,000 10 926

1995 29

IE

Waystone Investment Management (IE) Limited

2025 1,635,000 6,500

2017

Brown Brothers Harriman Fund Administration Services Ireland Limited

2025 13,300,000 19 8,862
1995 29

2025 836 1,600

2025 875 5,000
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Unitholders of Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust (or the “Trust”), which comprise
the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Investments as at 31 December 2024 and the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changesin Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
for the financia year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, including the material
accounting policy information.

Thefinancial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statementsisIrish
law and FRS 102 “ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”
(Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland).

In our opinion, Trust's financial statements:
give atrue and fair view in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland of the
assets, liabilities and financial position of the Trust as at 31 December 2024 and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Unit Trust Act 1990.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (or “1SAs
(Ireland)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard for Auditors (Ireland) issued by the Irish Auditing and
Accounting Supervisory Authority (or “IAASA"), and the ethical pronouncements established by Chartered
Accountants Ireland, applied as determined to be appropriate in the circumstances for the Trust. We have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors of the Manager (or the
“Directors’) use of going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis
appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue
as agoing concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue. The DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) will be put into liquidation following the Fund Maturity Date (that been the 25 July 2025)
and therefore this sub-fund is not a going concern.

Our responsihilities and the responsibilities of the manager with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

Other information comprises information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and the auditor’s report thereon including Management and Administration, the Investment Manager's
Report, Statement of Manager's Responsibilities and the unaudited appendices. The Manager isresponsible
for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistenciesin the financial statements, we are required to determine whether there
isamaterial misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors and those charged with governance for the financial Statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager's Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements which give atrue and fair view in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Practicein Ireland, including FRS 102, and for such internal control asthey determine
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

The auditor’ s objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statementsasa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes their opinion. Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (Ireland), the auditor will exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. The auditor will also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for their opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Trust’'s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If they
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, they are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify their
opinion. Their conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves atrue and fair view.

The auditor communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that may be identified during the audit.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Trust's unitholders, as a body, in accordance with the agreed scope of our
engagement. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust’s unitholders those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’ s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trust’s
unitholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Glennon

For and on behalf of

Grant Thornton

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
13-18 City Quay

Dublin 2

Date 11 June 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on the financial statements of WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED (“the
company”)
In our opinion the financial statements:

e give atrue and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the company as at 31 December
2024 and of the profit for the financial year then ended; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework and, in particular,
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

The financial statements we have audited comprise:

the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income;

the Statement of Financial Position;

the Statement of Changes in Equity;

the Statement of Cash Flows; and

the related notes 1 to 24, including material accounting policy information as set out in note 2.

The relevant financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is the Companies Act 2014 and
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and as adopted by
the European Union (“the relevant financial reporting framework”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are described below in the “Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting
Supervisory Authority, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report and Audited Financial
Statements, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for
the other information contained within the Directors’ Report and Audited Financial Statements. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and otherwise
comply with the Companies Act 2014, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on IAASA’s website at:
https://iaasa.ie/publications/description-of-the-auditors-responsibilities-for-the-audit-of-the-financial-statements. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014
Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:

e We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

e In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the financial statements
to be readily and properly audited.

The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements.

In our opinion, those parts of the directors’ report specified for our review, which does not include
sustainability reporting when required by Part 28 of the Companies Act 2014, have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Based on the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the provisions in the Companies Act 2014 which require us to report to you if,
in our opinion, the disclosures of directors’ remuneration and transactions specified by law are not made.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of the
Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Brian Jackson
For and on behalf of Deloitte Ireland LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm

Deloitte & Touche House, 29 Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2

30 April 2025
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